Public Document Pack



The Arc High Street Clowne S43 4JY

To: Chair & Members of the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee

Contact: Hannah Douthwaite Telephone: 01246 242473 Email: hannah.douthwaite@bolsover.gov.uk

Friday 1st December 2023

Dear Councillor

LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee of the Bolsover District Council to be held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Monday, 11th December, 2023 at 10:00 hours.

<u>Register of Members' Interests</u> - Members are reminded that a Member must within 28 days of becoming aware of any changes to their Disclosable Pecuniary Interests provide written notification to the Authority's Monitoring Officer.

You will find the contents of the agenda itemised on pages 3 and 4.

Yours faithfully

J. S. Fieldend

Solicitor to the Council & Monitoring Officer



Equalities Statement

Bolsover District Council is committed to equalities as an employer and when delivering the services it provides to all sections of the community.

The Council believes that no person should be treated unfairly and is committed to eliminating all forms of discrimination, advancing equality and fostering good relations between all groups in society.

Access for All statement

You can request this document or information in another format such as large print or **language** or contact us by:

- Phone: <u>01246 242424</u>
- Email: <u>enquiries@bolsover.gov.uk</u>
- **BSL Video Call:** A three-way video call with us and a BSL interpreter. It is free to call Bolsover District Council with Sign Solutions, you just need WiFi or mobile data to make the video call, or call into one of our Contact Centres.
- Call with <u>Relay UK</u> a free phone service provided by BT for anyone who has difficulty hearing or speaking. It's a way to have a real-time conversation with us by text.
- Visiting one of our <u>offices</u> at Clowne, Bolsover, Shirebrook and South Normanton

LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA

Monday, 11th December, 2023 at 10:00 hours taking place in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne

Page No.(s)

PART A - FORMAL

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Urgent Items of Business

To note any urgent items of business which the Chairman has consented to being considered under the provisions of Section 100(B) 4(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members should declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and Non Statutory Interest as defined by the Members' Code of Conduct in respect of:

a) any business on the agendab) any urgent additional items to be consideredc) any matters arising out of those items and if appropriate, withdraw from the meeting at the relevant time.

4. Minutes

5 - 8

To consider the minutes of the last meeting held on 3rd October 2023.

5. List of Key Decisions and Items to be Considered in Private

9

(Members should contact the officer whose name appears on the List of Key Decisions for any further information). **NB**: If Members wish to discuss an exempt report under this item, the meeting will need to move into exempt business and exclude the public in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Local Government Act 1972, Part 1, Schedule 12a for that part of the meeting only.

6.	New Council Ambition 2024-2028 - Scrutiny Consultation	10 - 16
7.	Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	17 - 18
8.	Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited - Service Level Agreement	19 - 89
9.	Review of Bolsover District's Regeneration Frameworks	90 - 97

- 10.Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery98 113- Post-Scrutiny Monitoring (FINAL REPORT)
- 11.
 Local Growth Scrutiny Work Programme 2023/24
 114 121

PART B - INFORMAL

12. Review Work

Agenda Item 4 LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee of the Bolsover District Council held in the Council Chamber, The Arc, Clowne on Tuesday 3rd October 2023 at 10:00 hours.

PRESENT:

Members:

Councillor Tom Kirkham in the Chair

Councillors Duncan Haywood, Mark Hinman and Jeanne Raspin.

Officers: Karen Hanson (Chief Executive), Jim Fieldsend (Monitoring Officer), Chris Fridlington (Director of Economic Development, Dragonfly Development Limited), Kay Gregory (Senior Economic Development Officer (Pleasley Vale)) and Hannah Douthwaite (Governance and Civic Officer).

Also in attendance was Councillor John Ritchie, Portfolio Holder for Growth.

LOC20-23/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Will Fletcher and Jane Yates.

LOC21-23/24 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no urgent items of business to consider.

LOC22-23/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made.

LOC23-23/24 MINUTES OF A MEETING HELD ON 1ST AUGUST 2023

Moved by Councillor Tom Kirkham and seconded by Councillor Duncan Haywood **RESOLVED** that the Minutes of a Local Growth Scrutiny Committee held on 1st August 2023 be approved as a correct record.

LOC24-23/24 LIST OF KEY DECISIONS AND ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE

The Monitoring Officer went through the items on the List of Key Decisions and Items to be Considered in Private document. Members were also reminded of the process for referring an item to a Scrutiny Committee for consideration prior to a decision being made.

LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

LOC25-23/24 LEASE AGREEMENT FOR VISION WEST NOTTS COLLEGE AT PLEASLEY VALE BUSINESS PARK

Councillor Tom Kirkham provided Members of the Committee with background information in relation to the Skills Hub. The appendices attached to the report contained previous Executive and Local Growth Scrutiny Committee reports and also the relevant information relating to the call in of the item.

The Vernon Street proposal was unable to proceed due to a lack of a private training supplier, and that an alternative involving Vision West Notts College delivering a green skills training and assessment centre at Pleasley Vale, had been recommended to Executive on 11th September 2023. This included the acceptance of grant funding of £500,000 from D2N2 for the creation of training and assessment centre including £150,000 in capital improvements. Full details of the proposal were contained in the report at Appendix 4.

The Director of Economic Development, Dragonfly Development Limited, clarified why there had been a change in direction and the various factors that had contributed to the Vernon Street Site being out of scope. It was also confirmed that negotiations were underway with Vision West Notts College.

Members welcomed the update, and it was hoped that there would be an increase in opportunities available as the East Midlands Combined Authority progressed.

Moved by Councillor Duncan Haywood and seconded by Councillor Tom Kirkham **RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

LOC26-23/24 PLEASLEY VALE REGENERATION PROGRAMME

The Senior Economic Development Officer – Pleasley Vale, updated Members on the progress of the Pleasley Vale Regeneration Programme.

It was noted that the Council was fully committed to ensure that Pleasley Vale Mills and parkland was preserved and enhanced for future generations. Currently the Business Park was approximately 85% occupied, however, the rents alone did not cover the extensive capital repairs required to maintain and improve the buildings and land.

The site at Pleasley Vale was located along the river Meden and contained a number of ponds and other water sources. Flood Modelling was commissioned in 2021 to identify the position of the Flood Zones in relation to the built structures and natural environment.

Following submission of the data, the Environment Agency was appointed to commission a formal Review of the modelling to confirm the position of the Flood Plane and inform the principle of development. The first review received in August 2023 identified a number of errors in the data and confirmed that the 2021 modelling was out of date and needed to be re-run.

The two Grade II Listed Gatehouses were currently vacant and falling into a state of decline. In order to accurately assess the amount of work required to renovate the

LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Gatehouses, a fully costed Schedule of Repairs and Improvements for Renovation document was commissioned by Smith and Roper in April 2023. This identified that the Coach House required £95,500 of repairs and Gardeners Lodge required £151,300 of repairs.

Residents of Pleasley Vale were engaged in the project and were regularly updated during their Residents Association meetings, where the project manager had attended to provide updates and listen to their views. Residents had also been actively involved in creating a digital, historic archive of Pleasley Vale, through their extensive collection of photographs, other memorabilia, and personal memories.

A feasibility study had been undertaken to confirm the costs and build implications of installing electric vehicle charging points at Mills 1 and 3 and was in the final stages of confirming the costs of delivery.

A Biodiversity Strategy would be commissioned to confirm the ecological baseline of the site, to identify areas which required improvement and to provide a management plan to ensure that enhancements were made.

Leisure Services had identified the silt levels within the Mill Pond had a potential health and safety implication for delivery of their activities. Costs and implications associated with draining the pond, removing, and disposing of the silt, carrying out repairs to the dam wall and reinforcing banks of the pond had been assessed. To date, no business case or report had been taken to Council to request the additional funding needed to carry out these works to support the delivery of the activities on the Mill Pond.

Moved by Councillor Duncan Haywood and seconded by Councillor Jeanne Raspin **RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

LOC27-23/24 DRAGONFLY DEVELOPMENT LIMITED (DDL) DELIVERY UPDATE

The Chief Executive provided a brief update on the outcome of a recent Dragonfly Development Shareholder Board meeting.

It was noted that the Terms of Reference had now been agreed. The Chief Executive advised Members that she would be happy to bring a report to Committee after each Shareholder Board meeting had taken place. Further to this, it was noted that the Shareholder Board was not a decision making body and any decisions would be referred to Council or Executive as required. Councillor Tom Kirkham expressed his interest in being a Member on the Shareholder Board.

Dragonfly would also provide a regular report to advise Members on what stage each project was at. Members requested that for future reports, information be included which detailed the number of Council properties lost to compared to the number of properties built by Dragonfly.

Moved by Councillor Tom Kirkham and seconded by Councillor Duncan Haywood. **RESOLVED** that the report be noted.

LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

LOC28-23/24 LOCAL GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24

Committee considered their proposed work programme for 2023/24.

Moved by Councillor Duncan Haywood and seconded by Councillor Tom Kirkham **RESOLVED** that the Work Programme 2023/24 be noted.

The meeting closed at 10:59 hours.



List of Key Decisions and items to be considered in private

The latest version of the Forward Plan can be found here:

https://committees.bolsover.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=1147&RD=0&bcr=1

Members should contact the officer whose name appears on the List of Key Decisions for any further information.

NB: If Members wish to discuss an exempt report under this item, the meeting will need to move into exempt business and exclude the public in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and Local Government Act 1972, Part 1, Schedule 12a for that part of the meeting only.

BDC Performance Framework Scrutiny Consultation

Purpose	To engage with Members to give an opportunity to review the draft performance framework to support delivery of the Council ambition for 2024-2028.
Dates	 20th Nov - Customer Services Scrutiny Committee 28th Nov - Finance and Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee 5th Dec - Climate Change and Communities Scrutiny Committee 11th Dec - Local Growth Scrutiny Committee
Officers	Karen Hanson - CEO Steve Brunt – Strategic Director of Services Kath Drury – Information, Engagement & Performance Manager Amar Bashir – Improvement Officer
Documentation	 Draft supporting council ambition performance framework for 2024 – 2028. Please read this document before the workshop
Format	 At the meeting the following discussion and information will be sought: Any comments on the aims? Any comments on the priorities which sit under each aim? Anything missing? Any comments on the draft initiatives/targets which sit under each aim? Anything missing? Any suggested amendments? Ideally, we would like to have around 10 initiative/targets per aim. Others can be monitored as service indicators. Information from the consultation will be used to review and refine the performance framework.
Contact	If you have any questions before the meeting, please contact any of the officers.

Bolsover Ambition 2024 - 2028

Working copy - Key – changes to ambition 2020-2024

Our Vision		
To become a dynamic, self-sufficient, and flexible Council that delivers excellent services, whilst adapting to local aspirations and acting as the economic and environmental driver for Bolsover District.		
	Our Aims	
We w	ill focus on:	
 Our Customers by providing excellent and accessible services Our Economy by driving growth, promoting the District and being business and visitor friendly Our Housing by delivering social and private sector housing growth Our Environment by protecting the quality of life for residents and businesses, meeting environmental challenges, and enhancing biodiversity. 		
Our Values		
We:		
0	Will show respect, honesty, openness, care and compassion in everything we do	
0	Will challenge ourselves and change for the better	
0	Are proud and passionate about what we do	
0	Will continue to work as a team and with partners to provide quality services.	

1

1

	Aim - Customers
Our F	Priorities
We a	re committed to:
	Increasing customer satisfaction with our services Continuous improvement to service delivery through innovation, modernisation and listening to customers. Improving the customer contact experience and removing barriers to accessing information and services Having an agile, responsive, skilled, and engaged workforce Actively engaging with partners to benefit our customers Continue to work with partners from all sectors, ensuring priorities are aligned to benefit the residents of Bolsover district. Promoting equality, diversity, and inclusion, and supporting and involving vulnerable and disadvantaged people Improving health, wellbeing and increasing participation in sport, leisure, and social activities
0	Ensuring good governance and transparency in all we do
To de	eliver these priorities we will:
2. 3. 4. 5.	Measure customer satisfaction for all front facing service areas at least every two years on a rolling programme. Develop real time customer satisfaction measurement for our contact centres and explore rolling this out further. Ensure we achieve a score of 90% or above (Excellent) on all four categories (Content, Accessibility, Marketing and User Experience) for our website using the Silktide software by December 2027 Work with partners to deliver the Sustainable Communities Strategy and publish an evaluation report annually. Work with stakeholders, regional and local partnerships to deliver shared strategies and priorities and publish an annual progress and evaluation report in respect of cross cutting themes (skills, aspiration, health, and local rail offer) Monitor performance against the corporate equality objectives and publish information annually. Monitor progress against the Equality Plan and objectives for 2023-2027 and publish information annually. Explore running a residents' survey to gain resident feedback on place-based services and priorities for improvement. Increase participation/attendances in leisure, sport, recreation, health, physical and cultural activity by X per year. Increase participation in sport, leisure and social activities, by 3,000 attendances per year, through the delivery of a number of physical activity interventions (Active Schools, Active Communities, Active Holidays, Active Clubs, Active Interventions and Active Leisure)

	 7. Deliver a health intervention programme which provides *** adults per year with a personal exercise plan via the exercise referral scheme. Deliver a health intervention programme which provides 500 adults per year with a personal exercise plan via the exercise referral scheme and aims to retain at least 50% into continued exercise after 12 weeks.
	 Implement a revised Complaints Procedure in line with the merged Complaints Code of the Housing and Local Government Ombudsman by April 2025? Another governess initiative?
	9. Another governance initiative?
	Aim - Economy
	Our Priorities
13	We are committed to:
ω	 Actively working with partners to support enterprise, innovation, jobs, and skills Unlocking development potential: unlocking the capacity of major employment sites Unlocking regeneration and development potential of long-term vacant land and buildings, and stalled sites and deliver income-generating capital projects Ensuring financial sustainability, increasing revenue streams, and making the best use of our assets Promoting the District and working with partners to increase and support the creative, cultural and tourism sector
	To deliver these priorities we will:
	1. Deliver a Business Growth Strategy by March 2021 that will support enterprise, innovation, jobs and skills and makes the best use of our assets. Refresh our Business Growth Strategy to enable and empower Dragonfly to support the Council to make best use of our assets, support growth in the local economy, attract inward investment to the District and maximise the District's share of potential funding streams from the Government and the Combined County Mayoral Authority
	 Optimise business growth (as measured by gross Business Rates) by £2m by March 2023. New target/initiative needed to link into the financial sustainability priority.
	 Working with partners to bring forward employment and development opportunities at Coalite and Clowne Garden Village by 2025.

- 4. Working with partners to develop a place-based narrative to encourage inward investment, increase engagement with our key heritage assets and grow the visitor economy, the number of tourists and the amount of tourism spending in the District by 2025.
- 5. Working with partners to develop innovation and growth in our cultural and creative sectors through active support of an investment in a creative's network, cultural corridor, and maker's hub.
- 6. Working with Higher Education and Further Education providers and other partners to develop post 16 provision within the District to enable and empower more of our local workforce to find better paid, skilled jobs.
- 7. Securing investment in improvement of our existing business estate and delivery of new commercial space, including regeneration of Pleasley Mills, to meet the needs of local business, encourage inward investment and support growth throughout the local economy.
- 8. Deliver a fully operational crematorium by 2024 and manage this facility to generate income from 2025.

Our	Priorities

Ь

We are committed to:

• Enabling housing growth by increasing the supply, quality and range of housing to meet the needs of the growing population

Aim – Housing

- Providing good quality council housing where people choose to live Providing high quality value for money social housing where people choose to live
- o Preventing and relieving more homelessness cases
- Being a good, fair, and effective landlord
- o Improving property and housing management standards
- Maintaining and improving the supply of good quality, well-managed homes in the private rented sector
- Ensuring that housing standards and living conditions in the district contribute towards better health outcomes for all

To deliver these priorities we will:

1. Maintain high levels of tenant satisfaction with council housing and associated services as assessed under the annual Tenant Satisfaction Measures (TSM) with the aim to be above the national average.

- Work towards compliance with the Social Housing Consumer Standards, ensuring tenants' voice is key when developing new council housing policies, procedures, and improvements.
 Commission and complete a full council housing stock condition survey by April 2025, upon completion develop an
 - improved rolling programme of stock inspections to inform future repairs and maintenance programme.
- 4. Deliver annual rolling stock inspection programme of 1250 council properties per annum.
- 5. Annually review housing delivery in the district and facilitate delivery to continue to meet the annual target of 272 new homes (Local Plan)
- 6. Work with partners to deliver an average of ??? units of affordable homes each year. Work with partners to deliver affordable homes in line with local need, as set out in the adopted Local Plan.
- 7. Deliver 200 new homes through a new Bolsover Homes Programme using Dragonfly Development Ltd by March 2028
- 8. Maximise potential from s106 arrangements to support affordable high-quality value for money social housing.
- 9. Develop strategies to support the private rented sector in supporting the Council in its duties.
- 10. Prevent homelessness for more than 50% of people who are facing homelessness each year. Suitable KPI to be developed.
- 11. Reduce average relet times for standard voids (council properties) to X calendar days by X and maintain thereafter Suitable KPIs to be agreed under the Dragonfly SLA

Aim - Environment			
Our Priorities			
We are committed to:Reducing our carbon footprint whilst supporting and encouraging residents and businesses to do the same.			
 Increasing recycling 			
• Ensuring a high standard of environmental cleanliness, undertaking appropriate enforcement activity where required			
 Enhancing biodiversity across the district and developing attractive neighbourhoods that residents feel proud of and 			
take responsibility for			
 Working with partners to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour 			
 Actively engaging with partners to benefit our communities Work with stakeholders, regional and local partnerships to 			
deliver shared strategies and priorities that support the local environment:			

• Ensuring all areas, neighbourhoods, and streets in the district, irrespective of housing tenure or type, are places where people want to live and are proud to live

To deliver these priorities we will:

- Reduce the District Council's carbon emissions by 100 tonnes CO2 in 20/21 125 tonnes CO2 in 21/22 200 tonnes CO2 in 22/23 - 300 tonnes CO2 in 23/24. Update the Carbon Reduction plan to deliver Net Zero 2050 and publish an annual progress and evaluation report.
- 2. Increase the combined recycling and composting rate to meet government's 65% target by 2035.
- 3. Implement Government Waste Consistency requirements by ending March 2026.
- 4. Introduce separate weekly collection of food waste by ending March 2026.
- 5. Sustain standards of litter cleanliness to ensure 96% of streets each year meet an acceptable level as assessed by Local Environment Quality Surveys (LEQS). Retain as a KPI
- 6. Sustain standards of dog fouling cleanliness to ensure 98% of streets each year meet an acceptable level as assessed by Local Environment Quality Surveys (LEQS). Retain as a KPI
- 7. Increase the number of fixed penalty notices issued for litter and dog fouling offences by 20% per year. Carry out 155 targeted proactive littering/dog fouling patrols per year (in 2023//24 and review number for 2024/25)
- 8. Increase the Council's ratio for fly-tipping fixed penalty notices issued per incident each year. (Draft wording)
- 9. Resolve successfully 60% of cases following the issuing of a Community Protection Warning A KPI around ASB to be developed as noted under the new Social Housing Consumer Standards
- 10. Achieve minimum quality standards of 60% for green spaces identified in the Local Plan
- 11. Develop a Biodiversity Net Gain Policy to meet future development of our urban and rural built environments.
- 12. Support developers and local organisations to deliver Biodiversity Net Gain across our urban and rural environments, realising future opportunities that support and enhance our Local Nature Recovery Strategy

Updated 14/11/23

Agenda Item 7

DDL - Board			A
			DRAGONFLY DEVELOPMENT
Devel Dela		00/11/22	
Report Date Report Period		08/11/23 Nov-23	
	Live Projects	100-25	
Project Name		oburn & Pendean - Blackwe	11
Client & Contract Sum	Bolsover Homes	£	11,582,574.69
Expected SoS & Finish	Mar-23		Spring 2026
Programme	Currently the project is on track to achieve Currently the project is on track to achieve		
Cost			
Health & Safety	Currently the project meets its legal compl	liance.	
Progress in the Period	The project achieved executive approval 1 of setting up the project. In late Septembe enable inspection for any bats; no bats we demolished by DTE, and will complete this number of prices to place an early enablin the site and doing a cut and fill exercise. Th	The project achieved executive approval 11/09/2023. The DDL pre construction team are now in the process of setting up the project. In late September 2023 two of the existing bungalows has their roofs removed to enable inspection for any bats; no bats were found. Since the 16.10.2023 the bungalows have been demolished by DTE, and will complete this by the end of November 2023. Currently the team are reviewing a number of prices to place an early enabling works package to the West side of site. This will include stripping the site and doing a cut and fill exercise. The design team are currently designing the ILS and have appointed the necessary designers and a bi weekly design team meeting is taking place. Any decisions are being taken	
Project Name Client & Contract Sum	Bolsover Homes	Moorfield 1 & 2	1,476,677.25
Contract Start on Site & Finish	05.06.2023	Ľ	End of February 2023
Programme		e its completion date	
Cost		Currently the project is on track to achieve its completion date Currently the project is off track to achieve its approved contract sum. (When including client agreed variations)	
Health & Safety	Currently the project meets its legal compl	liance	
Progress in the Period	regulations and this has added further cos plots will all be roofed in by the 17.11.202 with Moorfield 2 to follow in February. Mo	due to a the contamination found in the ground. In adddtion this job is now under the new building regulations and this has added further cost elements on this project such as PV panels on the roof. All the plots will all be roofed in by the 17.11.2023. Moorfield 1 is expected to be completed by the end of December with Moorfield 2 to follow in February. Moorfield 2 is experiencing delays as we await for the Section 50 approval to carryout the highway works. Relations in the community are strong and people are welcoming of the development.	
Project Name	Mar	ket Close 1 & 2 and Herewa	ard
Client & Contract Sum	Bolsover Homes	£	5,024,141.00
Contract Start on Site & Finish	17.10.2023		Early 2024
Programme	Currently the project is on track to achieve	e its completion date.	
Cost	Currently the project is on track to achieve		(When including client agreed
Health & Safety Progress in the Period	Currently the project meets its legal compl Currently the project is on track to meet al project is fully water tight with 90% of the	ll its base key performance i	
	and carry through to February 2024.		
Project Name		West Street	
Client & Contract Sum	Bolsover Homes	£	853,976.00
Contract Start on Site & Finish	13.02.2023		20.11.2023
Programme	Currently the project is on track to achieve	e its completion date. (Wher	n including agreed client variations)
Cost	Currently the project is on track to achieve	e its approved contract sum	
Health & Safety	Currently the project meets its legal compl	liance	
Progress in the Period	handover. After a difficult period completi the works are tarmacked and completed.	Currently the project meets its legal compliance Currently the project is due to be handed over on the 20.11.2023. Its has achieved all its statutory approvals to handover. After a difficult period completing the highways works due to delay form county on issuing permits, the works are tarmacked and completed. This has added delays and there have also been additonal drainage works required following ST's refusal to adopt the previously agreed design	
Project Name		Roseland Crematorium	
Client & Contract Sum	Bolsover District Council	£	7,400,000.00
Contract Start on Site & Finish	18.09.2023		Spring 2025
Programme	Currently the project is off track to achieve its completion date, due to some design delays and poor weather affecting performance on site. Currently the project is off track to achieve its approved contract sum, the contract is currently running over, but collectively the project team are working toward identifying cost savings to bring this back on budget.		
Cost	but collectively the project team are worki	ing toward identifying cost s	avings to bring this back on budget.
Health & Safety	Currently the project meets its legal compl	liance.	
	The project is waiting for steel for the four to continue with productivity in the interin works) is close to completion. The project	ndation to open up the work n. The installation of the fou	Il drain (a key and high risk package of
Progress in the Period	as the dig encountered solid rock through		

Project Name	Shirebrook Cluster 2 - Alder Way and Close, Rowan, Brookfield			
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	ТВС		
Expected SoS & Finish	Summer 2024	Winter 2025		
Progress in the Period		Currently the DDL pre construction team along with the design team WSP are looking at options for these three sites, with a pre planning applications soon to be issued. Clustering the sites offers best value in the spirt of previously delivered schemes.		
Project Name & Number	Mill Lan	e - Bolsover		
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	ТВС		
Expected SoS & Finish	Summer 2024	Winter 2025		
Progress in the Period	Currently there is a land ownership issue hindering pr	Currently the DDL pre construction team are reviewing this site which has achieved planning in 2021. Currently there is a land ownership issue hindering progress, the team are working to resolve this while ensuring viability. Options include purchasing the neighboring property.		
Project Name & Number	Bolsov	ver Cluster		
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	TBC		
Expected SoS & Finish	TBC	TBC		
Progress in the Period	Pre-construction have this on the work plan .			
Project Name & Number	Park La	ne - Pinxton		
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	£ 3,100,000.00		
Expected SoS & Prelim Allowance (Weeks)	Autumn 2024	Summer 2025		
Progress in the Period	This project has executive board approval subject to planning approval to increase the plots from 10 to 11. Further discussion are ongoing with regards to construction methodology.			
Project Name & Number	Briar Close			
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	ТВС		
	TBC	TBC		

Project Name & Number	Pinxton Cluster	
Client & Estimated Cost (To date)	Bolsover Homes	TBC
Expected SoS & Prelim Allowance (Weeks)	TBC	TBC
Progress in the Period	Currently the DDL pre construction team along with the design team WSP to further ascertain feasibility.	



Bolsover District Council

Meeting of the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee on 11th December 2023

Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited-Service Level Agreement

Report of the Director of Corporate and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

Classification	This report is Public.
Report By	Jim Fieldsend, Director of Corporate and Legal Services and Monitoring Officer

PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT

• To provide details of the service level agreement it is proposed to be entered into with Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Ltd in connection to the services the company will provide to the Council

REPORT DETAILS

1. Background

- 1.1 On the 1st of February the Council agreed the recommendations set out in a business case regarding the arrangements for the Dragonfly companies-Dragonfly Development Ltd and Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Ltd.
- 1.2 Under the agreed arrangements Dragonfly Development Ltd is to act as the Council's commercial company undertaking developments for external clients together with acting as subcontractor in delivering the Council's own build programme.
- 1.3 Dragonfly Management will provide services to the Council such as housing repairs, economic development, facilities management and bringing forward sites for development.
- 1.4 Following this decision a number of services have been undertaken by Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Ltd, however no formal agreement is in place. It is necessary in the long term to have an arrangement in place and for the last few months the Council and Dragonfly have been working on a draft service level agreement ("SLA") A copy of the proposed SLA is attached at Appendix 1.
- 1.5 The SLA is a detailed document providing for the provision of services back to the Council. Full details of the SLA will be presented to Members at the

committee. In summary the agreement provides for the provisions of the services as set out in Schedule- 1 the Specification. These services are as follows;

- Capital Projects
- New Builds
- Engineering
- Facilities Management
- Business Support for Property Services and Engineering Services
- Repairs and Maintenance Services
- Business Growth Services
- Economic Development Services
- 1.6 Members should note that this is still a draft document and may change in advance of the meeting. Any changes will be verbally reported at the meeting.
- 1.7 A separate service level agreement is being produced setting out the support services that the Council will provide to Dragonfly. These include Legal Services, HR and Payroll, ICT, Procurement and Finance. Once this is finalised a report will be brought to Local Growth Scrutiny Committee for information.

2. <u>Reasons for Recommendation</u>

2.1 The report has been requested by the Chair Local Growth Scrutiny so Members can be informed of the proposed agreement prior to a decision of the Executive.

3 <u>Alternative Options</u>

3.1 No alternative options are available.

RECOMMENDATIONS

- 1. That Members note the contents of the SLA,
- 2. That Members make comments on the SLA which will be passed on to the Executive when it considers the SLA

Approved by Councillor John Ritchie Portfolio Holder for Growth

IMPLICATIONS;			
Finance and Risk: Yes Details:	□ No ⊠		
	On behalf of the Section 151 Officer		
Legal (including Data Protection Details:	<u>on):</u> Yes⊡ No ⊠		
	On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council		
Environment: Please identify (if applicable) how this proposal/report will help the Authority meet its carbon neutral target or enhance the environment. Details:			
<u>Staffing</u> : Yes□ No ⊠ Details:	3		
	On behalf of the Head of Paid Service		

DECISION INFORMATION

Is the decision a Key Decision? A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact on two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure to the Council above the following thresholds: Revenue - £75,000 □ Capital - £150,000 □ ⊠ Please indicate which threshold applies	No
Is the decision subject to Call-In? (Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)	No

District Wards Significantly Affected	
Consultation: Leader / Deputy Leader Executive SLT Relevant Service Manager Members Public Other	Details:

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment.

- Making the best use of our assets.
- Ensuring financial sustainability and increasing revenue streams.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION		
Appendix No	Title	
Appendix 1	Draft Service Level Agreement between Bolsover District Council and Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited	

Background Papers

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below. If the report is going to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers).

Rpttemplate/BDC/021122

Appendix 1

DATED

2023

(1) BOLSOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL

AND

(2) DRAGONFLY MANAGEMENT (BOLSOVER) LIMITED

AGREEMENT

IN RELATION TO THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SERVICES UNDER REGULATION 12 OF THE PUBLIC CONTRACTS REGULATIONS 2015

SHARPE PRITCHARD

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION	1	
2.	COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION	. 8	
3.	SUPPLY OF SERVICES	8	
4.	KPIS	. 9	
5.	COMPLIANCE AND CHANGE IN LAWS	9	
6.	USE OF AUTHORITY PREMISES AND ASSETS	10	
7.	CHARGES, INVOICING AND PAYMENT		
8.	INTEREST		
9.	KEY PERSONNEL	12	
10.	SUPPLIER PERSONNEL	12	
11.	TUPE	13	
12.	REVIEW AND MONITORING	13	
13.	CHANGE CONTROL, BENCHMARKING AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT.	14	
14.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	14	
15.	SUB-CONTRACTING	15	
16.	LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	15	
17.	INSURANCE	16	
18.	FREEDOM OF INFORMATION		
19.	DATA PROCESSING	17	
20.	CONFIDENTIALITY	19	
21.	AUDIT	20	
22.	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY	21	
23.	REMEDIATION PLAN PROCESS	21	
24.	TERMINATION	22	
25.	TERMINATION ON NOTICE	23	
26.	FORCE MAJEURE	23	
27.	PREVENTION OF BRIBERY	23	
28.	CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY	24	
29.	WAIVER	25	
30.	RIGHTS AND REMEDIES	25	
31.	SEVERANCE		
32.	NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY	25	
33.	THIRD PARTY RIGHTS	25	
34.	ASSIGNMENT AND OTHER DEALINGS	26	
35.	PUBLICITY		
36.	NOTICES		
37.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT		
38.	VARIATION		
39.	COUNTERPARTS		
40.	GOVERNING LAW		
41.	JURISDICTION		
	DULE 1 – SPECIFICATION		
	OULE 2 - Performance regime		
	DULE 3 - Charges and payment		
	le 4 - Contract management		
	ULE 5 - Change control		
	e 6 - Benchmarking		
	OULE 7 - Exit Management		
schedule 8 - TUPE and PENSIONS			
schedule - 10 Data processing57			

THIS AGREEMENT is made on

BETWEEN

- (1) **BOLSOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL** of the Arc, High Street, Clowne, Derbyshire, S43 4JY (the **Authority**)
- (2) **DRAGONFLY MANAGEMENT (BOLSOVER) LIMITED** (company number 14767220) whose registered office is at the Arc, High Street, Clowne, Derbyshire, S43 4JY (the **Supplier**).

RECITALS

- (A) On 29 March 2023, the Supplier was incorporated as a new company within the Dragonfly group of companies, which consists of Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) and the Supplier. The Authority is the sole member of DDL and DDL is the sole member of the Supplier.
- (B) The Supplier was incorporated to provide the Services (as defined below) to the Authority within the meaning of Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and accordingly, the parties have agreed to enter into a contract for the provision of those Services on the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

AGREED TERMS

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

The following definitions and rules of interpretation apply in this Agreement.

1.1 Definitions

Achieved KPIs	in respect of any Service in any measurement period, the standard of performance actually achieved by the Supplier in the provision of that Service in the measurement period in question (calculated and expressed in the same way as the KPI for that Service is calculated and expressed in Schedule 2).
Authorised Representatives	the persons respectively designated as such by the Authority and the Supplier, the first such persons being set out in Schedule 2.
Authority Assets	any materials, plant or equipment owned or held by the Authority and provided by the Authority to the Supplier for use in providing the Services.
Authority Premises	such sections or floors of the Arc, High Street, Clowne, Derbyshire, S43 4JY or the Riverside Depot, Mansfield Road, Doe Lea, Chesterfield, S44 5NY as agreed by the Authority and the Supplier from time to time, used by the Supplier in providing the Services, or at such other locations as are otherwise reasonably required for the purposes of carrying out the Services.
Business Growth Services	means the services to be provided by the Supplier as set out in Schedule 1.
Business Plan	means the Business Plan as defined in the group shareholder agreement dated 2 May 2023.
	Authorised Representatives Authority Assets Authority Premises Business Growth Services

1

	Change	any change to this Agreement including to any of the Services.
	Change Control Note	the written record of a Change agreed or to be agreed by the parties pursuant to the Change Control Procedure.
	Change Control Procedure	the procedure for changing this Agreement, as set out in Schedule 5.
	Change in Law	any change in any Law which impacts on the performance of the Services and which comes into force after the Commencement Date.
	Charges	the charges which shall become due and payable by the Authority to the Supplier in respect of the Services in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, as such charges are set out in Schedule 3.
	Commencement Date	the date of this Agreement.
	Confidential Information	means all confidential information (however recorded or preserved) disclosed by a party or its Representatives to the other party and that party's Representatives in connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to:
		 (a) any information that would be regarded as confidential by a reasonable business person relating to: (i) the business, affairs, customers, suppliers or plans of the disclosing party; and (ii) the operations, processes, product information, know-how, designs, trade secrets or software of the disclosing party; and
		 (b) any information developed by the parties in the course of carrying out this Agreement;
	Consistent Failure	shall have the meaning set out in Schedule 2.
- OH	Consumer Prices Index	the Consumer Prices Index as published by the Office for National Statistics from time to time, or failing such publication, such other index as the parties may agree most closely resembles such index.
0	Contract Year	any 12-month period starting on the Commencement Date and on each anniversary of the Commencement Date.
	Controller	as defined in the Data Protection Legislation.
	Data Subject	as defined in the Data Protection Legislation.
	Dispute Resolution Procedure	the procedure set out in clause 14.

	Domestic law	the le	aw of the United Kingdom or part of the United
	Domestic law	Kingd	e 1
	EIRs	2004/ practi releva	Environmental Information Regulations 2004 (SI (3391) together with any guidance and/or codes of ce issued by the Information Commissioner or ant government department in relation to such ations.
	Equality and Diversity Policy		quality and diversity policy of the Authority being f the Policies.
	Exit Management Plan	the pl	an set out in Schedule 7.
	FOIA	guida Comr	reedom of Information Act 2000 together with any nce or codes of practice issued by the Information nissioner or relevant government department in on to such legislation.
	Force Majeure		ircumstance not within a party's reasonable control ling, without limitation:
		(a)	acts of God, flood, drought, earthquake or other natural disaster;
		(b)	epidemic or pandemic;
		(c)	terrorist attack, civil war, civil commotion or riots, war, threat of or preparation for war, armed conflict, imposition of sanctions, embargo, or breaking off of diplomatic relations;
		(d)	nuclear, chemical or biological contamination or sonic boom;
		(e)	any law or action taken by a government or public authority, including without limitation imposing an export or import restriction, quota or prohibition;
	\bigcirc	(f)	collapse of buildings, fire, explosion or accident; and
COL		indus Supp	excluding any labour or trade dispute, strikes, trial action or lockouts relating to the Supplier or the lier Personnel or any other failure in the Supplier's Sub-Contractor's supply chain.
	Health and Safety Policy		ealth and safety policy of the Authority being one of olicies.
	Property Services	Mana	s the Property Services and the Repairs and gement Services to be provided by the Supplier as ed within Schedule 1.
	General Change in Law	legisla the su	ange in Law where the change is of a general ative nature, or which generally affects or relates to upply of services which are the same as, or similar a Services.

- Information has, for the purposes of clause 18, the meaning given under section 84 of FOIA.
- Initial Term means the duration of the agreement starting at 00.01 am on the Commencement Date and ending at 11.59 pm on the day before the fifth anniversary of the Commencement Date.
- **Insolvency Event** where:
 - (a) the Supplier suspends, or threatens to suspend, payment of its debts or is unable to pay its debts as they fall due or admits inability to pay its debts or (being a company or limited liability partnership) is deemed unable to pay its debts within the meaning of section 123 of the Insolvency Act 1986;
 - (b) the Supplier commences negotiations with all or any class of its creditors with a view to rescheduling any of its debts, or makes a proposal for or enters into any compromise or arrangement with its creditors other than (being a company) for the sole purpose of a scheme for a solvent amalgamation of the Supplier with one or more other companies or the solvent reconstruction of that other party;
 - (c) the Supplier applies to court for, or obtains, a moratorium under Part A1 of the Insolvency Act 1986;
 - a petition is filed, a notice is given, a resolution is passed, or an order is made, for or in connection with the winding up of the Supplier (being a company, limited liability partnership or partnership) other than for the sole purpose of a scheme for a solvent amalgamation of that other party with one or more other companies or the solvent reconstruction of that other party;
 - (e) an application is made to court, or an order is made, for the appointment of an administrator, or a notice of intention to appoint an administrator is given or if an administrator is appointed, over the Supplier (being a company, partnership or limited liability partnership);
 - (f) the holder of a qualifying floating charge over the assets of the Supplier (being a company or limited liability partnership) has become entitled to appoint or has appointed an administrative receiver;
 - (g) a person becomes entitled to appoint a receiver over the assets of the Supplier or a receiver is appointed over the assets of the Supplier;

ONFIDENTIK

(d)

(h)	a creditor or encumbrancer of the Supplier
	attaches or takes possession of, or a distress,
	execution, sequestration or other such process is
	levied or enforced on or sued against, the whole
	or any part of the other party's assets and such
	attachment or process is not discharged within 14
	days;

- (i) any event occurs, or proceeding is taken, with respect to the Supplier in any jurisdiction to which it is subject that has an effect equivalent or similar to any of the events mentioned in (a) to (h) (inclusive);
- (j) the Supplier suspends or ceases, or threatens to suspend or cease, carrying on all or a substantial part of its business.

Intellectual Property Rights patents, utility models, rights to inventions, copyright and neighbouring and related rights, moral rights, trade marks and service marks, business names and domain names, rights in get-up and trade dress, goodwill and the right to sue for passing off or unfair competition, rights in designs, rights in computer software, database rights, and all other intellectual property rights, in each case whether registered or unregistered and including all applications and rights to apply for and be granted, renewals or extensions of, and rights to claim priority from, such rights and all similar or equivalent rights or forms of protection which subsist or will subsist now or in the future in any part of the world.

KPIs the key performance indicators for all and each part of the Services as specified in Schedule 2.

those personnel identified Schedule 2 for the roles attributed to such personnel, as modified pursuant to clause 9.

the laws of England and Wales and any other laws or regulations, regulatory policies, guidelines or industry codes which apply to the provision of the Services or with which the Supplier is bound to comply.

all approvals, certificates, authorisations, permissions, licences, permits, regulations and consents (whether statutory, regulatory, contractual or otherwise) necessary from time to time for the provision of the Services.

Personal Data as defined in the Data Protection Legislation.

Policies the Supplier's corporate policies or ,in the absence of a particular policy, the policy of the Authority covering the relevant area..

Processor as defined in the Data Protection Legislation.

Prohibited Act the following constitute Prohibited Acts:

Key Personnel

Law

Necessary Consents

	(a)	to directly or indirectly offer, promise or give any person working for or engaged by the Authority a financial or other advantage as an inducement or reward for any improper performance of a relevant function of activity;	
	(b)	to directly or indirectly request, agree to receive or accept any financial or other advantage as an inducement or a reward for improper performance of a relevant function or activity in connection with this Agreement;	
	(c)	committing any offence: (i) under the Bribery Act 2010; (ii) under legislation or common law concerning fraudulent acts; or (iii) of defrauding, attempting to defraud or conspiring to defraud the Authority;	
	(d)	any activity, practice or conduct which would constitute one of the offences listed under (c) above, if such activity, practice or conduct had been carried out in the UK.	
Relevant Requirements	fraud issue	pplicable law relating to bribery, corruption and I, including the Bribery Act 2010 and any guidance ed by the Secretary of State for Justice pursuant to on 9 of the Bribery Act 2010.	
Relevant Transfer	a rele	evant transfer for the purposes of TUPE.	
Remediation Notice		itten notice given by the Authority to the Supplier uant to clause 23 to initiate the Remediation Plan ess.	
Remediation Plan	resol	blan agreed in accordance with clause 23 for the ution of a Supplier's default in complying with its ations under this Agreement.	
Remediation Plan Process		process for resolving certain of the Supplier's ults as set out in clause 23.	
Replacement Supplier	any third party supplier, , appointed by the Authority from time to time as part of any Exit Management Plan.		
Representatives	means, in relation to party, its employees, officers, contractors, subcontractors, representatives and advisors.		
Request for Information	the	quest for information or an apparent request under Code of Practice on Access to Government mation, FOIA or the EIRs.	
Repairs and Maintenance Services		ns those repairs and maintenance services to be ded by the Supplier as detailed in Part 2 of Schedule	
Services	Supp	services to be delivered by or on behalf of the blier under this Agreement, including (at the date of Agreement) the Property Services, Repairs and	

Maintenance Services and the Business Growth Services

- Supplier Personnel all employees, staff, other workers, agents and consultants of the Supplier and of any Sub-Contractors who are engaged in the provision of the Services from time to time.
- **Sub-Contract** any contract or agreement (or proposed contract or agreement) between the Supplier and a third party pursuant to which the Supplier agrees to source the provision of any of the Services from that third party.
- **Sub-Contractor** a person with whom the Supplier enters into a Sub-Contract, and any third party with whom that third party enters into a subcontract or its servants or agents.
- Target KPIthe minimum level of performance for a KPI which is
required by the Authority as set out against the relevant
KPI in Schedule 2.
 - the period of the Initial Term as may be varied by:
 - (a) any extension pursuant to clause 2.2; or
 - (b) the earlier termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms.
- **Termination Date** the date of expiry or termination of this Agreement.
- **Termination Notice** any notice to terminate this Agreement which is given by either party in accordance with clause 24 or clause 25.

Termination is defined in Schedule 3. Payment Default

Term

TUPE

the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (*SI 2006/246*).

Working Day Monday to Friday, excluding any public holidays in England and Wales.

Working Hours the period from 9.00am to 5.00pm on any Working Day.

1.2

1.3

Clause, schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this

- A **person** includes a natural person, corporate or unincorporated body (whether or not having separate legal personality).
- 1.4 The schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in the body of this Agreement and any reference to this Agreement includes the schedules.
- 1.5 A reference to a **company** shall include any company, corporation or other body corporate, wherever and however incorporated or established.
- 1.6 Unless the context otherwise requires, words in the singular shall include the plural and in the plural shall include the singular.

- 1.7 Unless the context otherwise requires, a reference to one gender shall include a reference to the other genders.
- 1.8 Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement, a reference to legislation or a legislative provision is a reference to it as amended, extended or re-enacted and includes any subordinate legislation made under it, in each case from time to time.
- 1.9 A reference to **writing** or **written** excludes fax but not e-mail.
- 1.10 A reference to this Agreement or to any other agreement or document is a reference to this Agreement or such other agreement or document as varied from time to time.
- 1.11 References to clauses and schedules are to the clauses and schedules of this Agreement and references to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant schedule.
- 1.12 Any words following the terms including, include, in particular or any similar expression shall be construed as illustrative and shall not limit the sense of the words preceding those terms.
- 1.13 If there is any conflict or ambiguity between any of the provisions in the main body of this Agreement and the schedules, such conflict or inconsistency shall be resolved according to the following order of priority:
 - 1.13.1 the clauses of the agreement;
 - 1.13.2 Schedule 1 to this Agreement;
 - 1.13.3 the remaining schedules to this Agreement

Where there is any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the requirements of a Necessary Consent, then the latter shall prevail, provided that the Supplier has made all reasonable attempts to obtain a Necessary Consent in line with the requirements of the Services and the Supplier has notified the Authority in writing.

2. COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

- 2.1 This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall continue for the Term.
- 2.2 The Authority may, by giving the Supplier not less than six months' written notice prior to expiry of the Initial Term, request the extension of this Agreement in respect of the whole (or part) of the Services and on the same terms mutatis mutandis, for a period of up to five further years from the day following expiry of the Initial Term.

SUPPLY OF SERVICES

3

- 3.1 The Supplier shall provide the Services to the Authority with effect from the Commencement Date for the duration of the Term in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, including without limitation Schedule 1 and Schedule 2.
- 3.2 In providing the Services, the Supplier shall at all times:
 - 3.2.1 without prejudice to clause 4, provide the Services with reasonable care and skill and in furtherance of the Business Plan;

- 3.2.2 ensure that all goods, materials, standards and techniques used in providing the Services are of reasonable quality and are free from defects in workmanship, installation and design;
- 3.2.3 obtain, maintain and comply with all Necessary Consents at its own cost (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Authority);
- 3.2.4 allocate sufficient resources to provide the Services in accordance with the terms of this Agreement (provided always that this may from time to time require agreement for the allocation and funding of additional resources) in accordance with the Change Control Procedure;
- 3.2.5 ensure that any of the Supplier's Personnel who are engaged in the provision of any of the Services shall, if required by the Authority, attend such meetings at the premises of the Authority or elsewhere as may be reasonably required by the Authority; and
- 3.2.6 provide such reasonable co-operation and information in relation to the Services to such of the Authority's other suppliers as the Authority may reasonably require for the purposes of enabling any such person to create and maintain any interfaces reasonably required by the Authority.

4. KPIS

- 4.1 Where any Service is stated in Schedule 2 to be subject to a specific KPI, the Supplier shall provide that Service in such a manner as will ensure that the Achieved KPI in respect of that Service is equal to or higher than the corresponding Target KPI to such specific KPI.
- 4.2 If the existing Services are varied or new Services are added, Target KPIs for the same will be determined by the parties and included within Schedule 2.
- 4.3 The Supplier shall provide quarterly reports to the Authority in such form as the parties shall from time to time agree.

summarising the Achieved KPIs as provided for in clause 12.

5. COMPLIANCE AND CHANGE IN LAWS

- 5.1 In performing its obligations under this Agreement, the Supplier shall at all times comply with:
 - 5.1.1 all applicable Law; and
 - 5.1.2 all Policies.

The Supplier shall maintain such records as are necessary pursuant to the Laws and Policies and shall promptly on request make them available for inspection by any relevant authority that is entitled to inspect them and by the Authority (or its authorised representative).

- 5.2 Without limiting the generality of the obligation under clause 5.1, the Supplier shall (and shall procure that the Supplier Personnel shall) perform its obligations under this Agreement (including those in relation to the Services) in accordance with:
 - 5.2.1 all applicable Law regarding health and safety; and
 - 5.2.2 the Health and Safety Policy whilst at the Authority Premises.

- 5.3 Without limiting the general obligation set out in clause 5.1, the Supplier shall (and shall procure that the Supplier Personnel shall):
 - 5.3.1 perform its obligations under this Agreement (including those in relation to the Services) in accordance with:
 - (a) all applicable equality law (whether in relation to race, sex, gender reassignment, age, disability, sexual orientation, religion or belief, pregnancy, maternity or otherwise);
 - (b) the Authority's Equality and Diversity policy as provided to the Supplier from time to time;
 - (c) any other requirements and instructions which the Authority reasonably imposes in connection with any equality obligations imposed on the Authority at any time under applicable equality Law;
 - 5.3.2 take all necessary steps, and inform the Authority of the steps taken, to prevent unlawful discrimination designated as such by any court or tribunal, or the Equality and Human Rights Commission or any successor organisation.
- 5.4 The Supplier shall monitor and shall keep the Authority informed in writing of any changes in the Law which may impact the Services and shall provide the Authority with timely details of measures it proposes to take and changes it proposes to make to comply with any such changes. The Supplier shall only implement such changes in accordance with the Change Control Procedure.

6. USE OF AUTHORITY PREMISES AND ASSETS

- 6.1 With effect from the Commencement Date, the Authority shall grant the Supplier a non-exclusive and revocable licence to enter the Authority Premises for the sole purpose of providing the Services to the Authority. The licence shall be subject to the conditions of this Agreement, is personal to the Supplier and is not deemed to create a relationship of landlord and tenant between the parties.
- 6.2 The licence granted pursuant to clause 6.1 shall terminate immediately on the Termination Date.
- 6.3 The Supplier shall ensure that visiting or using the Authority Premises, the Supplier Personnel shall:
 - 6.3.1 keep the Authority Premises clean, tidy and properly secure;
 - 6.3.2 co-operate as far as may be reasonably necessary with the Authority's employees;
 - 6.3.3 act in such a way as to avoid causing unreasonable or unnecessary disruption to the routine and procedures of the Authority; and
 - 6.3.4 comply with all the rules and regulations that the Authority notifies to the Supplier from time to time in writing relating to the use and security of the Authority Premises.
- 6.4 The Supplier shall ensure that the Supplier Personnel shall not:
 - 6.4.1 obstruct access to the Authority Premises, or any part of them; or

- 6.4.2 do or permit to be done on the Authority's Premises anything which is illegal or which may be or become a nuisance, damage, inconvenience or disturbance to the Authority or the occupiers of or visitors to the Authority Premises.
- 6.5 For the avoidance of doubt, the legal and beneficial title of any Authority Assets reside with the Authority.
- 6.6 The Supplier shall ensure that any Authority Assets are:
 - 6.6.1 used with all reasonable care and skill and in accordance with any manufacturer guidelines or instructions;
 - 6.6.2 kept properly secure; and
 - 6.6.3 not removed from the Authority Premises unless expressly permitted under this Agreement or agreed in writing with by the Authority's Authorised Representative.
- 6.7 Subject to the requirements of clause 28 and the Exit Management Plan, in the event of the expiry or termination of the agreement, the Authority shall on reasonable notice provide the Supplier with such access as the Supplier reasonably requires to the Authority Premises to remove any of the Supplier's equipment. All such equipment shall be promptly removed by the Supplier.

7. CHARGES, INVOICING AND PAYMENT

7.5

- 7.1 The Authority shall pay the Charges to the Supplier in accordance with Schedule 3.
- 7.2 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the parties shall each bear their own costs and expenses incurred in respect of compliance with their obligations under this Agreement.
- 7.3 The Supplier shall invoice the Authority for payment of the Charges at the time the Charges are expressed to be payable in accordance with Schedule 3. All invoices shall be directed to the Authority's Authorised Representative and shall contain such information as the Authority may inform the Supplier from time to time.
- 7.4 The Authority shall accept for processing any electronic invoice submitted by the Supplier that complies with the standard on electronic invoicing provided that it is valid and undisputed. For these purposes, an electronic invoice complies with the standard of electronic invoicing where it complies with the standard and any of the syntaxes published in the UK version of Commission Implementing Decision (EU) 2017/1870 as it forms part of English law under the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018.
 - Where the Supplier submits an invoice to the Authority in accordance with clause 7.3the Authority will consider and verify that invoice in a timely fashion and shall seek to pay all sums due within 30 days of receipt of an invoice.
- 7.6 The Charges are stated exclusive of VAT, which shall be added at the prevailing rate as applicable and paid by the Authority following delivery of a valid VAT invoice. The Supplier shall indemnify the Authority against any liability (including any interest, penalties or costs incurred) which is levied, demanded or assessed on the Authority at any time in respect of the Supplier's failure to account for, or to pay, any VAT relating to payments made to the Supplier under this Agreement.
- 7.7 The Supplier shall maintain complete and accurate records of, and supporting documentation for, all amounts which may be chargeable to the Authority pursuant to this Agreement. Such records shall be retained for inspection by the Authority for

up to 12 years in line with the Supplier's Document Retention Policy from the end of the Contract Year to which the records relate.

8. INTEREST

- 8.1 Each party shall pay interest on any sum due under this Agreement, calculated as follows:
 - 8.1.1 Rate. 4% a year above the Bank of England's base rate from time to time, but at 4% a year for any period when that base rate is below 0%.
 - 8.1.2 Period. From when the overdue sum became due, until it is paid.

9. KEY PERSONNEL

- 9.1 Each party shall appoint the persons named as such in Schedule 4 as the individuals who shall be responsible for the matters allocated to such Key Personnel. The Key Personnel shall be those people who are identified by each party as being key to the success of the implementation and/or operation of the Services and who shall be retained on the implementation and/or operation of the Services for such time as a person is required to perform the role which has been allocated to the applicable Key Personnel. The Key Personnel shall have the authority to act on behalf of their respective party on the matters for which they are expressed to be responsible.
- 9.2 The Supplier shall not remove or replace any of the Key Personnel unless:
 - 9.2.1 the person is on long-term sick leave;
 - 9.2.2 the element of the Services in respect of which the individual was engaged has been completed to the Authority's satisfaction;
 - 9.2.3 the person resigns from their employment with the Supplier; or
 - 9.2.4 the Supplier obtains the prior written consent of the Authority.
- 9.3 Each party shall ensure that the role of each of its Key Personnel is not vacant (in terms of a permanent representative) for more than 180 Working Days. Any replacement shall be as, or more, qualified and experienced as the previous incumbent and fully competent to carry out the tasks assigned to the Key Personnel whom they have replaced. A temporary replacement shall be identified with immediate effect from the Supplier or the Authority becoming aware of the role becoming vacant.
- 9.4 If the Supplier replaces the Key Personnel as a consequence of this clause 9, the cost of effecting such replacement shall be borne by the Supplier.

10. SUPPLIER PERSONNEL

- 10.1 At all times, the Supplier shall ensure that:
 - 10.1.1 each of the Supplier Personnel is suitably qualified, adequately trained and capable of providing the applicable Services in respect of which they are engaged;
 - 10.1.2 there is an adequate number of Supplier Personnel to provide the Services properly;

- 10.1.3 only those people who are authorised by the Supplier (under the authorisation procedure to be agreed between the parties) are involved in providing the Services; and
- 10.1.4 all of the Supplier Personnel comply with the Policies.

11. TUPE

The parties agree that the provisions of Schedule 8 shall apply to any Relevant Transfer of staff under this Agreement.

12. REVIEW AND MONITORING

- 12.1 Each party shall nominate an Authorised Representative who will have authority to act on its behalf and contractually bind it in respect of all matters relating to the performance of this Agreement. The first Authorised Representatives are listed in Schedule 4. The Authorised Representatives will co-ordinate and manage the provision of the Services and work with each other to address any problems that arise in connection with the Services (including by signing Change Control Notes).
- 12.2 Each party shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the same person acts as its Authorised Representative throughout the Term, but may, following reasonable notice to the other party, replace that person from time to time where reasonably necessary in the interests of its business.
- 12.3 The Authorised Representatives shall meet at not less than monthly intervals to monitor and review the performance of this Agreement, including the achievement of the Target KPIs. Such meetings shall be minuted by the Authority's Authorised Representative and copies of those minutes shall be circulated to and approved by both parties.
- 12.4 Without prejudice to any other reports required under this Agreement, in advance of each meeting to be held in accordance with clause 12.3:
 - 12.4.1 the Supplier shall provide the Authority with a monthly written report detailing its performance against each of the KPIs and identifying any issues regarding the performance of the agreement for discussion at the meeting; and
 - 12.4.2 the Authority shall notify the Supplier of any concerns it has regarding the performance of the agreement for discussion at the meeting.
- 12.5 At the meeting, the parties shall agree a plan to address any problems identified in the performance of the agreement. In the event of any problem being unresolved, or a failure to agree on the plan, the procedures set out in clause 23 shall apply. Progress in implementing the plan shall be included in the agenda for the next monthly meeting.
- 12.6 A review meeting to assess the Supplier's performance of its obligations under this Agreement shall be held at six-monthly intervals throughout the Term. Each meeting shall be attended by senior representatives of each party, together with the Authorised Representatives.
- 12.7 The Authority may increase the extent to which it monitors the performance of the Services if the Supplier fails to meet the Target KPIs or fails to fulfil its other obligations under this Agreement. The Authority shall give the Supplier prior notification of its intention to increase the level of its monitoring. The Supplier shall bear its own costs in complying with such enhanced monitoring as is conducted by the Authority pursuant to this clause 12.7.

12.8 The Supplier shall submit any other management reports to the Authority in the form and at the interval specified in Schedule 4, or as specified elsewhere in this Agreement.

13. CHANGE CONTROL, BENCHMARKING AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

- 13.1 Any requirement for a Change shall be subject to the Change Control Procedure.
- 13.2 The parties shall comply with the provisions of Schedule 6 (Benchmarking).
- 13.3 The Supplier shall throughout the Term seek ways to derive efficiencies with respect to delivery of the Services and use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the Authority receives the benefit of any such efficiencies.
- 13.4 Where the Supplier identifies a potential efficiency:
 - 13.4.1 it shall promptly inform the Authority and shall advise the Authority whether, in the Supplier's professional opinion, the implementation of any change necessary to enable the Authority to enjoy that benefit is desirable (in view of quality, reliability and other relevant factors as well as price); and
 - 13.4.2 if the Authority concludes that the implementation of the necessary change is desirable, the Supplier shall implement the change.
- 13.5 Where the achievement of the benefit by the Authority would necessitate the making of a Change Control Note, the Change Control Procedure shall apply but the Supplier shall not be entitled to object to the proposed change. Any benefits arising from any such change as is referred to in this clause 13 (including any consequent reductions in the Charges) shall accrue solely to the Authority.

14. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 14.1 If a dispute arises out of or in connection with this Agreement or the performance, validity or enforceability of it (**Dispute**) then, except as expressly provided in this Agreement, the parties shall follow the procedure set out in this clause:
 - 14.1.1 either party shall give to the other written notice of the Dispute, setting out its nature and full particulars (**Dispute Notice**), together with relevant supporting documents. On service of the Dispute Notice, the Authorised Representatives shall attempt in good faith to resolve the Dispute;
 - 14.1.2 if the Authorised Representatives are for any reason unable to resolve the Dispute within 30 Working Days of service of the Dispute Notice, the Dispute shall be referred to the CEO of the Authority who shall attempt in good faith to resolve it;
 - 14.1.3 if the CEO of the Authority is for any reason unable to resolve the Dispute within 30 Working Days of it being referred to them, the parties will attempt to settle it by mediation in accordance with the CEDR Model Mediation Procedure. Unless otherwise agreed between the parties, the mediator will be nominated by CEDR as soon as reasonably possible, but in any event, within30 Working Days of referral of the Dispute Notice. To initiate the mediation, a party must serve notice in writing (**ADR notice**) to the other party to the Dispute, referring the dispute to mediation;
 - 14.1.4 Unless otherwise agreed between the parties, the mediation will start not later than 30 Working Days after the date of the ADR notice.

- 14.2 The commencement of mediation shall not prevent the parties commencing or continuing court proceedings.
- 14.3 If for any reason the Dispute is not resolved within 60 Working Days of commencement of the mediation, the Dispute shall be referred to and finally resolved by the courts of England and Wales in accordance with clause 40.

15. SUB-CONTRACTING

- 15.1 The Authority agrees that the Supplier may subcontract its obligations under this Agreement provided that the Supplier shall ensure at all times the Sub-Contractor's compliance with the terms of this Agreement.
- 15.2 In the event that the Supplier enters into any Sub-Contract in connection with this Agreement it shall:
 - 15.2.1 remain responsible for all acts and omissions of its Sub-Contractors and the acts and omissions of those employed or engaged by the Sub-Contractors as if they were its own;
 - 15.2.2 impose obligations on its Sub-Contractor in the same terms as those imposed on it pursuant to this Agreement and procure that the Sub-Contractor complies with such terms; and
 - 15.2.3 provide a copy, at no charge to the Authority, of any such Sub-Contract on receipt of a request for such by the Authority's Authorised Representative.
- 15.3 The Authority may require the Supplier to terminate a Sub-Contract where the acts or omission of the relevant Sub-Contractor have given rise to the Authority's right of termination of this Agreement pursuant to clause 24.1 or if there is a change of control of a Sub-Contractor (within the meaning of section 1124 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010) or the Sub-Contractor suffers an Insolvency Event.
- 15.4 Without prejudice to the generality of this clause 15, the Supplier shall operate an appropriate procurement policy and comply with the requirements of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.

16. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

- 16.1 References to liability in this clause 16 include every kind of liability arising under or in connection with this Agreement including but not limited to liability in contract, tort (including negligence), misrepresentation, restitution or otherwise.
- 16.2 Nothing in this clause 16 shall limit the Authority's payment obligations under this Agreement.
- 16.3 Nothing in this clause 16 shall limit any liability under:
 - 16.3.1 Clause 22 (IPR indemnity)
 - 16.3.2 the indemnities in Schedule 8 (TUPE) and
 - 16.3.3 breach of clause 27 (*Bribery*)
- 16.4 Nothing in this Agreement limits any liability which cannot legally be limited, including for:
 - 16.4.1 death or personal injury caused by negligence;

- 16.4.2 fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation; and
- 16.4.3 breach of the terms implied by section 2 of the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982 (title and quiet possession).
- 16.5 Subject to clause 16.3 and clause 16.4, the Supplier's total aggregate liability to the Authority in respect of all claims, losses or damages arising in each Contract Year, shall not exceed the total sum of the Charges paid by the Authority and all Charges payable under this Agreement in respect of Services actually supplied by the Supplier, whether or not invoiced by the Authority.
- 16.6 Subject to clause 16.2, clause 16.3 and clause 16.4, the Authority's total aggregate liability in respect of all claims, (other than a failure to pay any of the Charges that are properly due and payable and for which the Authority shall remain fully liable), losses or damages arising in each Contract Year shall not exceed total sum of the Charges paid by the Authority and all Charges payable under this Agreement in respect of Services actually supplied by the Supplier, whether or not invoiced by the Authority.
- 16.7 The Supplier has given commitments as to compliance of the Services with relevant specifications in clause 3.2 and clause 4. In view of these commitments, the terms implied by sections 3, 4 and 5 of the Supply of Goods and Services Act 1982 are, to the fullest extent permitted by law, excluded from this Agreement.

17. INSURANCE

- 17.1 The Authority shall arrange for the activities of the Supplier relating to this agreement to be covered by its insurance policy ("**Insurance Policy**").
- 17.2 The Supplier shall at all times comply with the terms of the Insurance Policy and shall ensure that nothing is done which would entitle any insurer to cancel, rescind or suspend any insurance cover, or to treat any insurance cover or claim as avoided in whole or part, and shall forthwith notify the Authority on becoming aware of any fact, circumstance or matter which has caused, or is reasonably likely to cause, any insurer to give notice to cancel, rescind, suspend or avoid any insurance, or any cover or claim under any insurance in whole or in part.

18. FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

- 18.1 The Supplier acknowledges that the Authority is subject to the requirements of the FOIA and the EIRs. The Supplier shall:
 - 18.1.1 provide all necessary assistance and cooperation as reasonably requested by the Authority to enable the Authority to comply with its obligations under the FOIA and EIRs;
 - 18.1.2 transfer to the Authority all Requests for Information relating to this Agreement that should be for the Authority to respond to, not the Supplier, as soon as practicable and in any event within 2 Working Days of receipt;
 - 18.1.3 provide the Authority with a copy of all Information belonging to the Authority requested in the Request for Information which is in its possession or control in the form that the Authority requires within 5 Working Days (or such other period as the Authority may reasonably specify) of the Authority's request for such Information; and
 - 18.1.4 not respond directly to a Request for Information that should be for the Authority to respond to, not the Supplier, unless authorised in writing to do so by the Authority.

- 18.2 The Supplier acknowledges that the Authority may be required under the FOIA and EIRs to disclose Information (including Commercially Sensitive Information) without consulting or obtaining consent from the Supplier. The Authority shall take reasonable steps to notify the Supplier of a Request for Information (in accordance with the Cabinet Office's Freedom of Information Code of Practice issued under section 45 of the FOIA) to the extent that it is permissible and reasonably practical for it to do so but (notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement) the Authority shall be responsible for determining in its absolute discretion whether any Commercially Sensitive Information or any other information is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the FOIA or the EIRs.
- 18.3 Notwithstanding any other term of this Agreement, the Supplier consents to the publication of this Agreement in its entirety (including variations), subject only to the redaction of information that the Authority considers is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of the FOIA and EIRs.
- 18.4 The Authority shall, prior to publication, consult with the Supplier on the manner and format of publication and to inform its decision regarding any redactions but shall have the final decision in its absolute discretion. The Supplier shall assist and cooperate with the Authority to enable the Authority to publish this Agreement.

19. DATA PROCESSING

- 19.1 Both parties will comply with all applicable requirements of the Data Protection Legislation. This clause 19 is in addition to, and does not relieve, remove or replace, a party's obligations or rights under the Data Protection Legislation.
- 19.2 The parties acknowledge that for the purposes of the Data Protection Legislation, the Authority is the Controller and the Supplier is the Processor. Schedule 10 sets out the scope, nature and purpose of processing by the Supplier, the duration of the processing and the types of Personal Data and categories of Data Subject.
- 19.3 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 19.1, the Authority will ensure that it has all necessary appropriate consents and notices in place to enable lawful transfer of the Personal Data to the Supplier for the duration and purposes of this Agreement.
- 19.4 Without prejudice to the generality of clause 19.1, the Supplier shall, in relation to any Personal Data processed in connection with the performance by the Supplier of its obligations under this Agreement:
 - 19.4.1 process that Personal Data only on the documented written instructions of the Authority which are set out in Schedule 10, unless the Supplier is required by Domestic Law to otherwise process that Personal Data. Where the Supplier is relying on Domestic Law as the basis for processing Personal Data, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Authority of this before performing the processing required by Domestic Law unless the Domestic Law prohibits the Supplier from so notifying the Customer;
 - 19.4.2 ensure that it has in place appropriate technical and organisational measures (as defined in the Data Protection Legislation), reviewed and approved by the Authority, to protect against unauthorised or unlawful processing of Personal Data and against accidental loss or destruction of, or damage to, Personal Data, appropriate to the harm that might result from the unauthorised or unlawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or damage and the nature of the data to be protected, having regard to the state of technological development and the cost of implementing any measures (those measures may include, where appropriate, pseudonymising and encrypting Personal Data, ensuring confidentiality, integrity, availability and resilience of its systems and services, ensuring that availability of and access to Personal Data can be

restored in a timely manner after an incident, and regularly assessing and evaluating the effectiveness of the technical and organisational measures adopted by it);

- 19.4.3 ensure that all personnel who have access to and/or process Personal Data are obliged to keep the Personal Data confidential;
- 19.4.4 not transfer any Personal Data outside of the UK unless the prior written consent of the Authority has been obtained and the following conditions are fulfilled:
 - (a) the Authority or the Supplier has provided appropriate safeguards in relation to the transfer;
 - (b) the Data Subject has enforceable rights and effective remedies;
 - (c) the Supplier complies with its obligations under the Data Protection Legislation by providing an adequate level of protection to any Personal Data that is transferred; and
 - (d) the Supplier complies with the reasonable instructions notified to it in advance by the Authority with respect to the processing of the Personal Data;
- 19.4.5 notify the Authority immediately if it receives:
 - (a) a request from a Data Subject to have access to that person's Personal Data;
 - (b) a request to rectify, block or erase any Personal Data;
 - (c) receives any other request, complaint or communication relating to either Party's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation (including any communication from the Information Commissioner);
- 19.4.6 assist the Authority in responding to any request from a Data Subject and in ensuring compliance with the Authority's obligations under the Data Protection Legislation with respect to security, breach notifications, impact assessments and consultations with supervisory authorities or regulators;
- 19.4.7 notify the Authority without undue delay on becoming aware of a Personal Data Breach including without limitation any event that results, or may result, in unauthorised access, loss, destruction, or alteration of Personal Data in breach of this Agreement;
- 19.4.8 at the written direction of the Authority, delete or return Personal Data and copies thereof to the Authority on termination or expiry of the Agreement unless required by Domestic Law to store the Personal Data;
- 19.4.9 maintain complete and accurate records and information to demonstrate its compliance with this clause 19 and allow for audits by the Authority or the Authority's designated auditor pursuant to clause 21 and immediately inform the Customer if, in the opinion of the Supplier, an instruction infringes the Data Protection Legislation.
- 19.5 Where the Supplier wishes to appoint a subprocessor to process any Personal Data relating to this Agreement, such subprocessor shall constitute a Sub-Contractor and the Supplier shall:

- 19.5.1 notify the Authority in writing of the intended processing by the Sub-Contractor;
- 19.5.2 obtain prior written consent from the Authority;
- 19.5.3 enter into a written agreement incorporating terms which are substantially similar to those set out in this clause 19.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY

- 20.1 The provisions of this clause do not apply to any Confidential information:
 - 20.1.1 is or becomes available to the public (other than as a result of its disclosure by the receiving party or its Representatives in breach of this clause);
 - 20.1.2 was available to the receiving party on a non-confidential basis before disclosure by the disclosing party;
 - 20.1.3 was, is, or becomes available to the receiving party on a non-confidential basis from a person who, to the receiving party's knowledge, is not bound by a confidentiality agreement with the disclosing party or otherwise prohibited from disclosing the information to the receiving party;
 - 20.1.4 the parties agree in writing is not confidential or may be disclosed;
 - 20.1.5 which is disclosed by the Authority on a confidential basis to any central government or regulatory body.
 - 20.1.6 which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Clause 20.4 below.
- 20.2 Each party shall keep the other party's Confidential Information secret and confidential and shall not:
 - 20.2.1 use such Confidential Information except for the purpose of exercising or performing its rights and obligations under or in connection with this Agreement (**Permitted Purpose**); or
 - 20.2.2 disclose such Confidential information in whole or in part to any third party, except as expressly permitted by this clause 20.
- 20.3 A party may disclose the other party's Confidential information to those of its Representatives who need to know such Confidential Information for the Permitted Purpose, provided that:
 - 20.3.1 it consults the other party in advance and informs such Representatives of the confidential nature of the Confidential Information before disclosure; and
 - 20.3.2 it procures that its Representatives shall, in relation to any Confidential Information disclosed to them, comply with the obligations set out in this clause as if they were a party to this Agreement,
 - 20.3.3 and at all times, it is liable for the failure of any Representatives to comply with the obligations set out in this clause 20.2.
- 20.4 A party may disclose Confidential Information to the extent such Confidential Information is required to be disclosed by law (including under the FOIA or EIRs), by any governmental or other regulatory authority or by a court or other authority of competent jurisdiction provided that, to the extent it is legally permitted to do so, it

gives the other party as much notice of its intent to make such disclosure as possible and provides an opportunity for the other party to make representations before deciding whether to disclose.

20.5 The provisions of this clause 20 shall survive for a period of 12 years from the Termination Date.

21. AUDIT

- 21.1 During the Term and for a period of 12 years after the Termination Date, the Supplier shall allow the Authority (acting by itself or through its Representatives) to access any of the Supplier's premises, systems, Supplier Personnel and relevant records as may reasonably be required to:
 - 21.1.1 fulfil any legally enforceable request by any regulatory body;
 - 21.1.2 verify the accuracy of Charges or identify suspected fraud;
 - 21.1.3 review the integrity, confidentiality and security of any data relating to the Authority or any service users;
 - 21.1.4 Ensure that the arrangements between the Authority and the Supplier remain in compliance with the requirements of Regulation 12 of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015;
 - 21.1.5 review the Supplier's compliance with the Data Protection Legislation and the FOIA, in accordance with clause 19 (Data Protection) and clause 18 (Freedom of Information), and any other legislation applicable to the Services; or
 - 21.1.6 verify that the Services are being provided and all obligations of the Supplier are being performed in accordance with this Agreement.
- 21.2 The Authority shall use its reasonable endeavours to ensure that the conduct of each audit does not unreasonably disrupt the Supplier or delay the provision of the Services.
- 21.3 Subject to the Authority's obligations of confidentiality, the Supplier shall on demand provide the Authority and any relevant regulatory body (and/or their agents or representatives) with all reasonable co-operation and assistance in relation to each audit, including:
 - 21.3.1 all information requested by the above persons within the permitted scope of the audit;
 - 21.3.2 reasonable access to any sites and to any equipment used (whether exclusively or non-exclusively) in the performance of the Services; and
 - 21.3.3 access to the Supplier Personnel.
- 21.4 The Authority shall endeavour to (but is not obliged to) provide at least 15 Working Days' notice of its intention or, where possible, a regulatory body's intention, to conduct an audit.
- 21.5 The parties agree that they shall bear their own respective costs and expenses incurred in respect of compliance with their obligations under this clause, unless the audit identifies a material failure by the Supplier to perform its obligations under this Agreement in any material manner in which case the Supplier shall reimburse the Authority for all the Authority's reasonable costs incurred in the course of the audit.

- 21.6 If an audit identifies that:
 - 21.6.1 the Supplier has failed to perform its obligations under this Agreement, the provisions of clause 23 shall apply;
 - 21.6.2 the Authority has overpaid any Charges, the Supplier shall pay to the Authority the amount overpaid within 28 days from the date of receipt of an invoice or notice to do so. The Authority may deduct the relevant amount from the Charges if the Supplier fails to make this payment; and
 - 21.6.3 the Authority has underpaid any Charges, the Authority shall pay to the Supplier the amount of the underpayment within 28 days from the date of receipt of an invoice for such amount.

22. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

- 22.1 In the absence of prior written agreement by the Authority to the contrary, all Intellectual Property Rights created by the Supplier or Supplier Personnel:
 - 22.1.1 in the course of performing the Services; or
 - 22.1.2 exclusively for the purpose of performing the Services,

shall vest in the Authority on creation.

22.2 The Supplier shall indemnify the Authority against all claims, demands, actions, costs, expenses (including legal costs and disbursements on a solicitor and client basis), losses and damages arising from or incurred by reason of any infringement or alleged infringement (including the defence of such alleged infringement) of any Intellectual Property Right by the availability of the Services, except to the extent that they have been caused by or contributed to by the Authority's acts or omissions.

23. REMEDIATION PLAN PROCESS

- 23.1 Subject to Clause 23.2, if the Supplier is in default in complying with any of its obligations under this Agreement and unless the default is incapable of remedy, the Authority may not terminate this Agreement without first operating the Remediation Plan Process. If the Supplier commits such a default, the Authority shall give a Remediation Notice to the Supplier which shall specify the default in outline and the actions the Supplier needs to take to remedy the default.
- 23.2 The Authority shall be under no obligation to initiate the Remediation Plan Process if it issues a notice to terminate in the circumstances set out in clause 24.1.1, clause 24.1.4, clause 24.1.5 and clause 24.1.6.
- 23.3 Within 30 Business Days of receipt of a Remediation Notice, the Supplier shall:
 - 23.3.1 submit a draft Remediation Plan, only if it is responsible for the matters which are the subject of the Remediation Notice; or
 - 23.3.2 inform the Authority that it does not intend to submit a Remediation Plan, in which event the Authority shall be entitled to serve a Termination Notice.
- 23.4 The Authority shall either approve the draft Remediation Plan as soon as reasonably possible but in any event within 30 Business Days of its receipt pursuant to Clause 23.3.1, or it shall inform the Supplier why it cannot accept the draft Remediation Plan. In such circumstances, the Supplier shall address all such concerns in a revised Remediation Plan, which it shall submit to the Authority as soon as reasonably possible but in any event within 30 Business Days of its receipt of the

Authority's comments. If no such notice is given, the Supplier's draft Remediation Plan shall be deemed to be agreed.

- 23.5 Once agreed, the Supplier shall promptly start work on the actions set out in the Remediation Plan.
- 23.6 If, despite the measures taken under clause 23.4, a Remediation Plan cannot be agreed within 30 Business Days then the Authority may elect to end the Remediation Plan Process and serve a Termination Notice.
- 23.7 If a Remediation Plan is agreed between the parties, but the Supplier fails to implement or successfully complete the Remediation Plan by the required completion date, the Authority may:
 - 23.7.1 terminate this Agreement by serving a Termination Notice;
 - 23.7.2 give the Supplier a further opportunity to resume full implementation of the Remediation Plan; or
 - 23.7.3 refer the matter for resolution under the Dispute Resolution Procedure.
- 23.8 If, despite the measures taken under clause 23.7, the Supplier fails to implement the Remediation Plan in accordance with its terms, the Authority may elect to end the Remediation Plan Process and refer the matter for resolution by the Dispute Resolution Procedure or serve a Termination Notice.
- 23.9 The Authority shall not be obliged to follow the Remediation Plan Process if there is a repetition of substantially the same default by the Supplier as had previously been addressed in a Remediation Plan within a period of 3 months following the conclusion of such previous Remediation Plan. In such event, the Authority may serve a Termination Notice.

24. TERMINATION

- 24.1 Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, and subject to clause 23, the Authority may terminate this Agreement with immediate effect or on the expiry of the period specified in the Termination Notice by giving written notice to the Supplier if one or more of the following circumstances occurs or exists:
 - 24.1.1 if the Supplier is in material breach of this Agreement, which is irremediable;
 - 24.1.2 the parties fail to agree the Remediation Plan in accordance with the Remediation Plan Process;
 - 24.1.3 the Supplier fails to implement or successfully complete the Remediation Plan in accordance with the Remediation Plan Process;
 - 24.1.4 the circumstances referred to in clause 23.9 occur;
 - 24.1.5 if there is an Insolvency Event;
 - 24.1.6 if the Authority elects to terminate pursuant to clause 27.6;
 - 24.1.7 the Authority reasonably believes that the circumstances set out in regulation 73(1) of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 apply.
- 24.2 Either party may, during the continuance of a Force Majeure Event, terminate this Agreement if the circumstances in clause 26.6 arise.

24.3 The Supplier may terminate this Agreement in the event that the Authority commits a Termination Payment Default by giving 30 days' written notice to the Authority. In the event that the Authority remedies the Termination Payment Default in the 30 day notice period, the Supplier's notice to terminate this Agreement shall be deemed to have been withdrawn.

25. TERMINATION ON NOTICE

Without affecting any other right or remedy available to it, the Authority may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 12 months' written notice to the Supplier.

26. FORCE MAJEURE

- 26.1 Subject to the remaining provisions of this clause 26, if a party is prevented, hindered or delayed in or from performing any of its obligations under this Agreement by a Force Majeure Event (**Affected Party**), the Affected Party shall not be in breach of this Agreement or otherwise liable for any such failure or delay in the performance of such obligations. The time for performance of such obligations shall be extended accordingly.
- 26.2 The corresponding obligations of the other party will be suspended, and its time for performance of such obligations extended, to the same extent as those of the Affected Party.
- 26.3 The Affected Party shall:
 - 26.3.1 as soon as reasonably practicable after the start of the Force Majeure Event but not later than 7 days from its start, notify the other party in writing of the Force Majeure Event, the date on which it started, its likely or potential duration, and the effect of the Force Majeure Event on its ability to perform any of its obligations under the agreement; and
 - 26.3.2 use all reasonable endeavours to mitigate the effect of the Force Majeure Event.
- 26.4 If the Supplier is the Affected Party, it shall not be entitled to claim relief to the extent that the consequences of the relevant Force Majeure Event should have been foreseen and prevented or avoided by a prudent provider of service similar to the Services.
- 26.5 The Affected Party shall notify the other party in writing as soon as practicable after the Force Majeure Event ceases or no longer causes the affected party to be unable to comply with its obligations under this Agreement. Following such notification, this Agreement shall continue to be performed on the terms existing immediately before the occurrence of the Force Majeure Event unless agreed otherwise by the parties.
- 26.6 If the Force Majeure Event prevents, hinders or delays the Affected Party's performance of its obligations for a continuous period of more than 4 weeks, the party not affected by the Force Majeure Event may terminate this Agreement by giving 12 weeks' notice to the Affected Party.

27. PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

- 27.1 The Supplier represents and warrants that neither it, nor any Supplier Personnel:
 - 27.1.1 has committed a Prohibited Act;

47

27.1.2 to the best of its knowledge has been or is subject to an investigation, inquiry or enforcement proceedings by a governmental, administrative or regulatory body regarding any Prohibited Act or alleged Prohibited Act; or

- 27.1.3 has been listed by any government department or agency as being debarred, suspended, proposed for suspension or debarment, or otherwise ineligible for participation in government procurement programmes or contracts on the grounds of a Prohibited Act.
- 27.2 The Supplier shall promptly notify the Authority if, at any time during the Term, its circumstances, knowledge or awareness changes such that it would not be able to repeat the warranties set out in clause 27.1 at the relevant time.
- 27.3 The Suppler shall (and shall procure that its Supplier Personnel shall) during the Term:
 - 27.3.1 not commit a Prohibited Act;
 - 27.3.2 not do or omit to do anything that would cause the Authority or any of the Authority's employees, consultants, contractors, sub-contractors or agents to contravene any of the Relevant Requirements or otherwise incur any liability in relation to the Relevant Requirements;
 - 27.3.3 have and maintain in place its own policies and procedures to ensure compliance with the Relevant Requirements and prevent occurrence of a Prohibited Act;
 - 27.3.4 notify the Authority (in writing) if it becomes aware of any breach of clause 27.3.1 or clause 27.3.2, or has reason to believe that it or any person associated with it has received a request or demand for any undue financial or other advantage in connection with performance of this Agreement.
- 27.4 The Supplier shall maintain appropriate and up to date records showing all payments made by the Supplier in connection with this Agreement and the steps taken to comply with its obligations under clause 27.3.
- 27.5 The Supplier shall allow the Authority and its third party representatives to audit any of the Supplier's records and any other relevant documentation in accordance with clause 21.
- 27.6 If the Supplier is in default under this clause 27 the Authority may by notice:
 - 27.6.1 require the Supplier to remove from performance of this Agreement any Supplier Personnel whose acts or omissions have caused the default; or
 - 27.6.2 immediately terminate this Agreement.
- 27.7 Any notice served by the Authority under clause 27.6 shall specify the nature of the Prohibited Act, the identity of the Party who the Authority believes has committed the Prohibited Act and the action that the Authority has elected to take (including, where relevant, the date on which this Agreement shall terminate).

28. CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION OR EXPIRY

- 28.1 On the expiry of the Term or if this Agreement is terminated for any reason, the provisions of the Exit Management Plan shall come into effect and the Supplier shall co-operate fully with the Authority to ensure an orderly migration of the Services to the Authority or, at the Authority's request, a Replacement Supplier.
- 28.2 On termination or expiry of this Agreement and on satisfactory completion of the Exit Management Plan (or where reasonably so required by the Authority before such completion) the Supplier shall procure that all data and other material belonging to the Authority (and all media of any nature containing information and data belonging

to the Authority or relating to the Services), shall be delivered to the Authority forthwith and the Supplier Authorised Representative or Chief Executive Officer shall certify full compliance with this clause.

- 28.3 Any provision of this Agreement that expressly or by implication is intended to come into or continue in force on or after termination or expiry, including clause 4.3 (provision of records), clause 2.5(Indemnities), clause 16 (Limitation of Liability), clause 17 (Insurance), clause 18 (Freedom of Information), clause 19 (Data Processing), clause 20 (Confidentiality), clause 21 (Audit) and this clause 28 (Consequences of termination), shall remain in full force and effect.
- 28.4 Termination or expiry of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, remedies, obligations or liabilities of the parties that have accrued up to the date of termination or expiry, including the right to claim damages in respect of any breach of the agreement which existed at or before the Termination Date.

29. WAIVER

- 29.1 A waiver of any right or remedy is only effective if given in writing and shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent right or remedy.
- 29.2 A delay or failure to exercise, or the single or partial exercise of, any right or remedy shall not waive that or any other right or remedy, nor shall it prevent or restrict the further exercise of that or any other right or remedy.

30. RIGHTS AND REMEDIES

Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, the rights and remedies provided under this Agreement are in addition to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies provided by law.

31. SEVERANCE

- 31.1 If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is or becomes invalid, illegal or unenforceable, it shall be deemed deleted, but that shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the rest of this Agreement.
- 31.2 If any provision or part-provision of this Agreement is deemed deleted under clause 31.1, the parties shall negotiate in good faith to agree a replacement provision that, to the greatest extent possible, achieves the intended commercial result of the original provision.

32. NO PARTNERSHIP OR AGENCY

- 32.1 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be deemed to, establish any partnership or joint venture between any of the parties, constitute any party the agent of another party, or authorise any party to make or enter into any commitments for or on behalf of any other party.
- 32.2 Each party confirms it is acting on its own behalf and not for the benefit of any other person.

33. THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

33.1 This agreement does not give rise to any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to enforce any term of this Agreement.

34. ASSIGNMENT AND OTHER DEALINGS

- 34.1 The Authority may in the event of local government reorganisation but not further or otherwise transfer or novate its obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Supplier (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed), provided that it gives prior written notice of such dealing to the Supplier.
- 34.2 The Supplier shall not assign, transfer, mortgage, charge, subcontract, delegate, declare a trust over or deal in any other manner with any of its rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Authority (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed).

35. PUBLICITY

- 35.1 The Supplier shall not except where agreed with the Authority:
 - 35.1.1 make any press announcements or publicise this Agreement or its contents in any way; or
 - 35.1.2 use the Authority's name or logo in any promotion or marketing or announcement of orders,

except as required by law, any government or regulatory authority, any court or other authority of competent jurisdiction, without the prior written consent of the Authority, which shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

36. NOTICES

- 36.1 Any notice given to a party under or in connection with this contract shall be in writing marked for the attention of the party's Authorised Representative and shall be:
 - 36.1.1 delivered by hand or by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service at its registered office (if a company) or its principal place of business (in any other case); or
 - 36.1.2 sent by email to the following addresses (or an address substituted in writing by the party to be served):
 - (a) Party 1: karen.hanson@bolsover.gov.uk.
 - (b) Party 2: grant.galloway@bolsover.gov.uk.
- 36.2 Any notice shall be deemed to have been received:
 - 36.2.1 If delivered by hand, at the time the notice is left at the proper address;
 - 36.2.2 if sent by pre-paid first-class post or other next working day delivery service, at 9.00 am on the second Working Day after posting; or.
 - 36.2.3 if sent by email, at the time of transmission, or if this time falls outside Working Hours in the place of receipt, when Working Hours resume.
- 36.3 This clause does not apply to the service of any proceedings or other documents in any legal action or, where applicable, any arbitration or other method of dispute resolution.

37. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

- 37.1 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes and extinguishes all previous and contemporaneous agreements, promises, assurances and understandings between them, whether written or oral, relating to its subject matter.
- 37.2 Each party acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement it does not rely on, and shall no remedies in respect of, any statement, representation, assurance or warranty (whether made innocently or negligently) that is not set out in this Agreement.
- 37.3 Each party agrees that it shall have no claim for innocent or negligent misrepresentation or negligent misstatement based on any statement in this Agreement.

38. VARIATION

Subject to clause 13, no variation of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the parties (or their Authorised Representatives).

39. COUNTERPARTS

39.1 This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall constitute a duplicate original of this Agreement, but all the counterparts shall together constitute the one agreement.

40. GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims) shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and Wales.

41. JURISDICTION

Each party irrevocably agrees that the courts of England and Wales shall have exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or its subject matter or formation (including non-contractual disputes or claims).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this document has been executed and delivered on the date first stated above.

Executed as a deed by affixing the common seal of BOLSOVER DISTRICT COUNCIL) Seal)))
in the presence of	
Authorised signatory	S SINE DRAN
Executed as a deed by DRAGONFLY MANAGEMENT (BOLSOVER) LIMITED	
acting by, a director, in the presence of)) Director
Signature:	
Name of witness:	
Address:	

Occupation of witness:

SCHEDULE 1 – SPECIFICATION

This schedule comprises of three parts outlining Service to be delivered on behalf of the Authority which covers Property Services, Repairs and Maintenance and Business Growth Services.

PART 1 – PROPERTY SERVICES Property Services delivers construction, maintenance, and repair activities on behalf of the Authority. Capital Projects manages capital programmes for the HRA. Engineering Services is responsible for drainage, engineering services and infrastructure. Facilities Management delivers the maintenance and capital programmes for corporate premises. Each team is assisted by Business Support which provides financial management, customer and contractor interface, job allocation and meeting co-ordination.

The scope of this service includes:

- Managing asset data to inform capital improvement schemes across the Authority's affordable housing properties
- Undertaking capital repairs schemes across Authority's affordable housing properties
- Delivering major housing welfare adaptations to the Authority's affordable housing properties
- Delivering major repairs to the Authority's affordable housing properties
- Inputting into the Authority's HRA business plan
- Undertaking commercial and residential consultancy work for external clients
- Providing corporate buildings that are compliant and meet the needs of the services that use them
- Ensuring corporate assets underpin corporate priorities and provide value for money
- Maintaining Council let assets in accordance with tenant's/customer requirements
- Undertaking capital works projects to corporate assets
- Managing drainage services including drain clearance and repairs
- Inspection and making safe of dangerous structures across Bolsover District when requested
 by Building Control
- Managing and repairing closed churchyards, bus shelters, roadside seats, streetlights, street nameplates and pedestrian/vehicular bridges and other Council infrastructure
- Civil engineering projects
- Engineering consultation for planning applications

PART 2 - REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

To deliver a high-quality customer focused repair and maintenance service for customers and maintain properties in a good state of repair. This includes budget management for the Authorities housing stock in respect of repairs and improvement. In providing a high-quality service the following outlines what will be provided;

SCOPE

- Void property refurbishment to the Authority's lettable standard (dated November 2018), within agreed budget and target timescales
- Responsive repairs on a day to day basis, completed within agreed target timescales according to priority and to comply with Right to Repair legislation
- Planned repairs on a day to day basis, completed within agreed target timescales according to priority and comply with Right to Repair legislation.
- Cyclical servicing of heating systems (Gas / Solid Fuel / Heat Interface Units / Air Source & Ground Source systems), fire sprinkler systems, and electrical installations ensuring compliance with current legislation.
- Carry out property inspection surveys for disrepair and building defects.
- Management of Asbestos within the Authority's Housing Stock
- Implementation of the Authority's tenant improvement policy and procedures, and tenant recharge policy.
- Working with the Authority to continually improve service delivery seeking innovation and transformation, including use of technology.
- Provision of out of hours emergency repairs service assisting the Authority's Central Control and community enforcement team to ensure tenants safety.
- Provision of repair diagnostic software to assist tenants when reporting repairs to the Authority's Contact Centres, Central Control, and via the Authority's website.

PART 3 – BUSINESS GROWTH SERVICES

Business Growth is essential for delivering the Authority's vision of becoming a dynamic, self-sufficient and flexible Authority that delivers excellent services, whilst adapting to local aspirations and acting as the economic and environmental driver for Bolsover District.

This service will provide two key functions which aim to stimulate growth and investment: Commercial Property and Business Growth.

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY AND ESTATES SERVICES ("COMMERCIAL PROPERTY")

SCOPE

The Service delivers asset, tenancy, and financial management activities. It is responsible for the strategic direction and business planning of the Council's commercial assets, including new acquisitions, leases and licences. It delivers a service which directly contributes to the positive financial position of the Council through income generation and reducing the liabilities of the commercial stock through bringing operational efficiencies to the Service. Officers contribute to the drafting of the strategies and policies associated with the effective management of the commercial property portfolio,

and manage the day-to-day activities across the assets to ensure both tenant and landlord compliance with statutory legislation.

The scope of the service includes, but is not limited to:

- Acting as the principal point of contact for all commercial property and asset enquiries on behalf of the Council.
- Ensuring effective implementation of the commercial asset strategies and policies, including the Authority's acquisitions and disposals strategy.
- Delivering an effective and efficient tenancy management service, including statutory compliance, lease management for tenant covenants, debtor account management and periodic inspections.
- Implementing working practices to ensure due diligence / financial checks are undertaken and negotiating best value for the Landlord to best protect the Council when undertaking new property transactions.
- Proactive debt management, including the recharge and recovery of all debtor charges, legal action, forfeiture and recovery through the Courts.
- The feasibility and business planning for new commercial property developments. The feasibility and business planning for strategic investment / improvements to the existing commercial assets.
- The 'Client' lead on behalf of the Council for the capital construction of new commercial developments

BUSINESS GROWTH

The Business Growth Team facilitates the growth and investment in economic, social, and environmental regeneration across the District. It is responsible for the strategic direction of the Growth Strategy, Tourism Strategy and Business Engagement Strategy and their associated action plans to bring about meaningful growth and investment. It represents the Council across local, regional and national committees as lead for economic growth, and works with national partners to facilitate inward investment enquiries, accelerating the delivery of strategic employment sites identified within the Local Plan. The Service delivers a variety of grant funded business support programmes, responsive to the needs of the business community, to facilitate growth and investment in pre-start, start-up, SME and growth industries to boost employment and the economic well-being of residents.

SCOPE

The scope of the service will include, but is not limited to:

- Formulating, delivering, and monitoring the Growth, Tourism, and Business Engagement Strategies on behalf of the Council.
- Delivery of activities and actions as set out in the growth, tourism, and business engagement strategies.
- Promotion of the district as a destination to residents, businesses, and visitors in order to change the perception of the district and encourage more local 'on your doorstep' activities to encourage and promote a pride of place.
- Accelerating economic growth through facilitating inward investment enquiries, engaging with local, regional, and national partners to best support relocation into the district and/or the development of strategic employment sites as identified within the Local Plan.

- Working with developers and businesses, individuals, and education providers (colleges, universities) to improve the skills of the population through formulating Employment and Skills Plans through the planning application process.
- Act as the district's representative for economic development at local, regional, and national committees and groups, including on the MCCA sub-groups / committees, as lead for economic growth, regeneration, place, tourism and visitor economy, economic policy.
- Leading on the formulation of funding applications and securing external funding which deliver the economic, social and environmental ambitions for growth across the district.
- The management, administration, and monitoring of any internal, external or allocated grant funding, where the grant funding will directly / indirectly contribute to a positive economic, social or environmental impact.
- Engagement and working with the further and higher education providers (colleges and universities) to better meet employer demand for a skilled workforce and upskilling the same to meet future demand in new and emerging industries.
- To work with Local Visitor Economy Partnership (Visit Peak District Derbyshire and Derby) and Visit England to promote the offer and raise the profile of the district as an emerging tourist destination.
- The feasibility and business planning for strategic investment in new commercial developments.
- The 'Client' lead on behalf of the Council for the capital construction of new commercial developments.

SCHEDULE 2 - PERFORMANCE REGIME

PART 1 - KPIS

1. THE KPIS

1.1. The KPIs which the Parties have agreed shall be used to measure the performance of the Services by the Supplier are contained in the below table.

KPI Description	Method of calculating service delivery/ measurement period	Target KPI	Comments / Action
Minor voids	Average time taken to complete works (working days) from receiving keys to handing back to Housing Management for reletting	30%	RAF
Major voids	Average time taken to complete works (working days) from receiving keys to handing back to Housing Management for reletting	60%	
Gas and solid fuel appliance servicing	Annual programme	100%	
 Repairs - New TSM RP02 - Repairs completed within target timescale provides for. 1. Non-emergency repairs 2. Emergency repairs This is across all works including any contractors, but does not include Planned or Cyclical works 	Responsive (emergency) repairs completed to target	 Emergency 90% Non Emergency 80% 	
Tenant satisfaction with repair (%)	Job Completion as produced by total Mobile	80%	
Tenant satisfaction with standard of home improvement (capital programme)	Tenant Form's completed	90% satisfied	Currently being reviewed
% of properties non- decent? (TSM RP01)	Stock Condition Survey	100%	This KPI will be determined once the survey is completed to inform base line and

			inform level of work required.
Number of properties made decent during reporting period?		% of decent and % which have been made decent	This KPI will be determined once the survey is completed to inform base line and inform level of work required.
Domestic Compliance against 1. Fire 2. Asbestos 3. Water Safet 4. Lifts (TSM BS02-05)	As per approved annual programme for that year	100 %	2AF
Asset management	Revenue spend	 As per approved programme for that year to include: 1. Welfare including Wet Room Adaptions 2. Decorating Programme 3. Asbestos Management 4. Voids Cleaning 5. Replacement Boilers 6. Gas Services 7. Solid Fuel 8. Emergency Repairs 	
Asset management	Capital spend	As per approved programme and budget annually, to include: 1. Welfare Adaptions 2. External Wall Insulation 3. Electrical Upgrades 4. Ext Door Replacements 5. Heating 6. Unforeseen works 7. Kitchen Contract 8. Soffit & Facias 9. Roof Replacement 10. Flat roof replacement 11. Bramley Vale 12. Void wet rooms 13. Safe & Warm scheme	
Domestic Blocked drains cleared	1 working day	90%	

Bolsover Homes	Building programme	Delivery to agreed client specification	
Facilities	Statutory compliance on properties responsible for including Commercial Properties in respect of Asbestos, Fire and Legionella	100% of agreed properties	
Facilities	PAT testing on all equipment available for testing	100%	
Facilities Management	 No of working days to respond to matters: 1. 1 day for urgent 2. 3 days non urgent 3. 10 days regular maintenance 	100%	RA
Engineering-	Attend dangerous structures within 1 working day. when requested by DBCP (DBCP are the district lead on dangerous structures)	100%	
New Builds	Attend to defects and tenant operating queries within 2 working days	100%	

The Supplier shall monitor its performance against each Target KPI and shall send the Authority a report detailing the Achieved KPIs in accordance with Schedule 4.

PART 2 - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Supplier confirms that it will comply with the following performance management process in its provision of Services in accordance with this agreement. Provided that the below is adjusted each year according to the Authority's reasonable approved programme.

Authority Governance

	Attendees	Frequency	Nature	Escalation / Reporting Route
Finance & Corporate Overview Scrutiny Committee	Supplier: Senior	Quarterly	Scrutiny of the performance of the Authority,	Shareholder Board
	Representative		limited to the work that Supplier	Authority Referrals to other
	Authority:		undertakes for the Authority, with	

	Chief Executive Officer, Statutory Officers with relevant Directors		opportunity to discuss performance challenges with relevant directors (as required)	committees as required.
Dragonfly Shareholder Board	Authority: Chief Executive Officer, Statutory Officers with relevant Directors, Client Programme Manager Client Programme Manager and nominated Portfolio holders Other key Officers when requested including a Senior Representative Dragonfly Developments Limited and Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited	Monthly (Reviewed Frequently)	This group will oversee the delivery of the Authority's wholly owned Group of Companies Dragonfly Developments Limited and Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited	Authority
Growth Scrutiny	Supplier: Chief Executive Officer Authority: Chief Executive Officer	Annually With updates to be received as per the Committee workplan,	Scrutiny of performance	Shareholder Board Authority
Housing Stock Management	Supplier: Operational and Finance Directors Authority: Assistant Director of Housing Management and Enforcement	Monthly	Oversee delivery of the approved Asset Management Capital spend, with opportunity to discuss performance challenges with relevant directors (as required). This also includes compliance on	Shareholder Board Authority Referrals to other committees as required.

	Fire, Asbestos, Water Safety & Lifts.	
--	---	--

Contract Governance

	Attendees	Frequency	Nature	Escalation / Reporting Route
Joint Working Group	Supplier: CEO, Operational and Finance Directors Authority: Chief Executive Officer, Statutory Officers with relevant Directors and Client Programme Manger	Monthly (Reviewed Frequently)	To deliver the Authority's ambitions to generate income from its housing, commercial and regeneration activities. Oversee and maintain appropriate management, governance, due diligence, legal, performance monitoring, operations, and reporting of each company in accordance with the Business Case. Contribute to the delivery of the Authority Objectives in accordance with the Business Plans. Support strategic objectives and significant decisions of the Authority by overseeing delivery of the Business case and Business Plans	Shareholder Board Annual Report to Authority

SCHEDULE 3 - CHARGES AND PAYMENT

1. CALCULATION OF THE CHARGES

- 1.1. A budgetary allocation for the Supplier shall be calculated by the parties annually as part of the Authority's annual budget setting process. This budget setting process shall take place in January of each year.
- 1.2. Following the finalisation of the annual budget, the Supplier will then invoice the Authority for Services to be provided on a quarterly basis, in advance.
- 1.3. The Authority will then pay the invoiced amounts from the budgetary allocation for the Services.

2. CHARGES.

Service	Year 1 budget	Future budgets
Property Services	£X plus any in year additional grant funding and associated match funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.	Such number as communicated to the Supplier following agreement of the Council's internal budget setting process, together with any additional grant funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.
Repairs and Maintenance Services	£X plus any in year additional grant funding and associated match funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.	Such number as communicated to the Supplier following agreement of the Council's internal budget setting process, together with any additional grant funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.
Business Growth Services	£X plus any in year additional grant funding and associated match funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.	Such number as communicated to the Supplier following agreement of the Council's internal budget setting process, together with any additional grant funding awarded to/by the Authority for the delivery of the Services as set out in Schedule 1.

SCHEDULE 4 - CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

1. AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

1.1. The Authority's initial Authorised Representatives

Karen Hanson	(CEO Bolsover District Council)
Theresa Fletcher	(Service Director of Finance and Section 151 Officer)
Jim Fieldsend Officer)	(Service Director Corporate and Legal Services and Monitoring
Victoria Dawson	(Assistant Director of Housing Management and Enforcement)
Jess Clayton	(Client Relationship and Programme Manager)

1.2. The Supplier's initial Authorised Representatives

Grant Galloway	(CEO, Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited)
lan Barber	(Director, Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited)
Chris Fridlington	(Director, Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited)

2. KEY PERSONNEL

Karen Hanson	(CEO Bolsover District Council and Dragonfly Group Sponsor)
--------------	---

Grant Galloway (CEO of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited)

3. SAFEGUARDING - FOLLOWING AUDIT.

Pam Brown (Lead Officer: BDC Director for Executive, Corporate Services and Partnerships)

Catherine Platts

Andy Clarke

4. REPORTS

4.1 Reports to be received at the joint working group.

Frequency	Report
Monthly	 Reports required within 5 working days of the end of the month Breakdown of cash received as per xxxx account Breakdown of rents charged and other debits during the month with cumulative balance outstanding Aged debtors report consistent with cumulative position advised above. Forecasts of revenue expenditure to contribute to the forecasts submission as per the Authority's monitoring timetable. Actuals & forecasts of capital expenditure to contribute to the forecast submission as per the Authority's monitoring timetable. Invoice for temporary accommodation, capital funding and any other items over the fee to be received with supporting documentation at least 10 working days before the due date. Performance outcomes against the Annual Delivery Plan, Commitments Plan and other contractual and or regulatory requirements (e.g. Care Quality Commission) relating to services commissioned by the Authority. Schedule of intercompany income, expenditure, debtors and creditors with a reconciliation to the Authority's figures by the end of the following month (e.g. transactions and reconciliation to the end of April to be received by end of May)
Quarterly	 At the end of each quarter within 5 working days at the end of the quarter. Schedule of Right to Buy sales Narrative for quarterly performance Schedule of completions Schedule of bad write off in excess of £5,000 for authorisations Profile of decants within 10 working days of the end of the quarter. Schedule of bad debt write offs in excess of £50 and up to £5,000 together with a draft DPR for authorisation by the CEO by the end of the month following the quarter end.
Annually	 Financial Plan for all key business activities funded by both HRA and General Fund with clear lines of expenditure.

	 Stock numbers, average rents and estimated costs to contribute to producing HRA budgets as per the Authority's budgets timetable. Breakdown of capital expenditure for financial year including a detailed listing of accruals as per the Authority's closing timetable.
	13. Delivery report and reconciliation against asset management strategy with revised timetable and financial plan if required.
	 Annual Report / Business Plan and any other topics by xxxxx
	 15. Each Dragonfly Company shall prepare a draft set of accounts in line with the timetable provided by the Authority in March each year, these will then be presented at the next Joint Working Group meeting.
	16. Each Dragonfly Company shall provide a set of audited accounts as soon as practicable and at the latest by 3 months after the end of the relevant financial year. Again, these will then be presented at the next Joint Working Group meeting.
	17. Capital Bids in line with dates advised in the budget timetable.
Ad hoc	 Number /value of Right to Buy applications and completions for HRA model forecasting. Provide supporting information in
	response to audit requests e.g. sample transactions within 24 hours of receiving the request.



SCHEDULE 5 - CHANGE CONTROL

1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

- 1.1. Where the Authority or the Supplier sees a need to change this Agreement, the Authority may at any time request, and the Supplier may at any time recommend, such Change only in accordance with the Change Control Procedure set out in paragraph 2 of this Schedule 5.
- 1.2. Until such time as a Change is made in accordance with the Change Control Procedure, the Authority and the Supplier shall, unless otherwise agreed in writing, continue to perform this Agreement in compliance with its terms before such Change.
- 1.3. Any discussions which may take place between the Authority and the Supplier in connection with a request or recommendation before the authorisation of a resultant Change shall be without prejudice to the rights of either party.
- 1.4. Any work undertaken by the Supplier and the Supplier Personnel which has not been authorised in advance by a Change, and which has not been otherwise agreed in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule 5, shall be undertaken entirely at the expense and liability of the Supplier.

2. PROCEDURE

- 2.1 Discussion between the authority and the supplier concerning a change shall result in any one of the following:
 - 2.1.1 No further action being taken; or
 - 2.1.2 A request to change this agreement by the authority; or
 - 2.1.3 A recommendation to change this agreement by the supplier.
- 2.2 Where a written request for a change is received from the authority, the supplier shall, unless otherwise agreed, submit two copies of a change control note signed by the supplier to the authority within three weeks of the date of the request.
- 2.3 A recommendation to amend this agreement by the supplier shall be submitted directly to the authority in the form of two copies of a change control note signed by the supplier at the time

42

of such recommendation. The authority shall give its response to the change control note within three weeks.

- 2.4 Each change control note shall contain:
 - 2.4.1 the title of the Change;
 - 2.4.2 the originator and date of the request or recommendation for the Change;
 - 2.4.3 the reason for the Change;
 - 2.4.4 full details of the Change, including any specifications;
 - 2.4.5 the price, if any, of the Change;
 - 2.4.6 a timetable for implementation, together with any proposals for acceptance of the Change;
 - 2.4.7 a schedule of payments if appropriate;
 - 2.4.8 details of the likely impact, if any, of the Change on other aspects of this Agreement including:
 - a) the timetable for the provision of the Change;
 - b) the personnel to be provided;
 - c) the Charges;
 - d) the Documentation to be provided;
 - e) the training to be provided;
 - f) working arrangements;
 - g) other contractual issues;
 - h) the date of expiry of validity of the Change Control Note; and
 - i) provision for signature by the Authority and the Supplier.
 - 2.4.9 For each Change Control Note submitted by the Supplier the Authority shall, within the period of the validity of the Change Control Note:
 - a) allocate a sequential number to the Change Control Note; and
 - b) evaluate the Change Control Note and, as appropriate:
 - c) request further information;
 - accept the Change Control Note by arranging for two copies of the Change Control Note to be signed by or on behalf of the Authority and return one of the copies to the Supplier; or
 - e) notify the Supplier of the rejection of the Change Control Note.
 - 2.4.10 A Change Control Note signed by the Authority and by the Supplier shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement.

SCHEDULE 6 - BENCHMARKING

1. Interpretation

- 1.1 The definitions in this paragraph apply in this schedule.
- 1.2 Benchmark Review: a review required by the Authority in accordance with this Schedule 6.

Benchmarked Services: the Services taken as a whole.

Best Value: as defined in Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999.

- 2. The Authority may, by written notice, require a Benchmark Review of the Services in accordance with the provisions of this Schedule 6. The first Benchmark Review may not take place until at least 18 months after the Commencement Date and each subsequent Benchmark Review must be at least 12 months after the previous one.
- 3. if any Benchmark Review determines that the Charges do not represent Best Value, in line with the Authority's statutory duties, then the Supplier shall, in accordance with Schedule 5 (Change Control) and within three months of completion of the Benchmark Review, make a proposal for a changes to the Services, with Charges representing Best Value, under which there will be a new Initial Term, and modifications may be made to the Services and the KPIs.
- 4. On receipt of the proposal from the Supplier under paragraph 3 the Authority shall have the option to:
 - 4.1 accept the new proposal in which case the Parties shall record the change
 - 4.2 reject the proposal and elect to continue to receive the Services on the existing basis; or
 - 4.3 reject the proposal and terminate this Agreement on six months' notice in writing to the Supplier without cost other than the Charges up to the date of such termination.
- 5. The purpose of the Benchmark Review shall be to establish whether the Services as a whole provide for Best Value, in line with the Authority's statutory duties.

68

SCHEDULE 7 - EXIT MANAGEMENT

1. EXIT MANAGEMENT

- 1.1. In the event of termination of this Agreement for whatever reason the Supplier shall procure the transfer to the Authority of any rights or title it may in assets transferred to the Supplier by the Authority to deliver the Services or used solely for the delivery of the Services. the Supplier shall at the Authority's option procure the novation or assignment to the Authority of the benefit of any contracts entered into with third parties for the delivery of the Services.
- 1.2. During the final six months of the Term or during the notice period specified in clause 26 of this Agreement where a notice has been served, and for the period of three months following end of the term or termination of this Agreement (as the case may be) the Supplier shall fully cooperate with the Authority to ensure a smooth transfer of responsibility to the incoming service provider. In the event of termination of the Agreement, for whatever reason, the Supplier shall comply with the provision of Schedule 8.

45

SCHEDULE 8 - TUPE AND PENSIONS

- 1. Terms are defined below **Indemnities** A breach by the Council of its obligations under paragraph] above; subject to paragraph [] any claim or demand by any Relevant Employee arising out of the employment of any Relevant Employee provided that this arises from any act, fault or omission of the Council in relation to any Relevant Employee prior to the Relevant Transfer Date (save where such act, fault or omission arises as a result of the Contractor's or any relevant Sub-Contractor's failure to comply with Regulation 13 of TUPE) and any such claim is not in connection with the Relevant Transfer. The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified in full the Employer, and at the Council's request each and every service provider who shall provide any service equivalent to any of the Services after expiry or earlier termination of this Contract ("Future Contractor") against: all Direct Losses incurred by the Council or any Future Contractor in connection with or as a result of any claim or demand against the Council or any Future Contractor by any person who is or has been employed or engaged by the Contractor (or any Sub-Contractor) in connection with the provision of any of the Services where such claim arises as a result of any act, fault or omission of the Contractor and/or any Sub-Contractor after the Commencement Date;all Direct Losses incurred by the Council or any Future Contractor in connection with or as a result of a breach by the Contractor of its obligations under paragraph above; and all Direct Losses incurred by the Council or any Future Contractor in connection with or as a result of any claim by any trade union or staff association or employee representative (whether or not recognised by the Contractor and/or any Sub-Contractor in respect of all or any of the Relevant Employees) arising from or connected with any failure by the Contractor (and/or any Sub-Contractor) to comply with any legal obligation to such trade union, staff association or other employee representative whether under Regulations 13 or 14 of TUPE or any award of compensation under Regulation 15 of TUPE, under the Directive or otherwise and, whether any such claim arises or has its origin before or after the date of the Commencement Date. The Contractor shall indemnify and keep indemnified in full the Council, against all Direct Losses incurred by the Council in connection with or as a result of: the change of identity of employer to the Contractor (or any Sub-Contractor) occurring by virtue of TUPE being significant and detrimental to any of the Relevant Employees or to any person who would have been a Relevant Employee but for their resignation (or decision to treat their employment as terminated under Regulation 4(9) of TUPE) on or before the Commencement Date as a result of the change in employer, and whether such claim arises before or after the Commencement Date; any proposed or actual change by the Contractor (or any Sub-Contractor) to the Relevant Employees' working conditions, terms or conditions or any proposed measures of the Contractor (or the relevant Sub-Contractor) which are to any of the Relevant Employee's material detriment or to the material detriment of any person who would have been a Relevant Employee but for their resignation (or decision to treat their employment as terminated under Regulation 4(9) of TUPE) on or before the Commencement Date as a result of any such proposed changes or measures, and whether such claim arises before or after the Commencement Date; and any claim arising out of any misrepresentation or mis-statement whether negligent or otherwise made by the Contractor (or any Sub-Contractor) to the Relevant Employees or their representatives whether before on or after the Commencement Date and whether liability for any such claim arises before on or after the Commencement Date.For the avoidance of doubt, the indemnities in paragraphs 1.5.2 and 1.5.3 shall not apply to the extent that the claim arise from a wrongful act or omission of the Council. Provision of Details and IndemnityThe Contractor shall immediately upon request by the Employer provide to the Employer details of any measures which the Contractor or any Sub-Contractor envisages it or they will take in relation to any employees who are or who will be the subject of a Relevant Transfer, and if there are no measures, confirmation of that fact, and shall indemnify the Employer against all Direct Losses resulting from any failure by the Contractor to comply with this obligation.
 - 3.1. Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (and shall procure that any sub-contractor shall) within the period of twelve (12) months immediately preceding the Termination Date or as consequence of the service of notice to terminate the Contract early in accordance with its terms or as a result of the Council notifying Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited of its intention to retender this Agreement:
 - 3.1.1. on receiving a written request from the Council provide in respect of any person engaged or employed by Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited or any sub-contractor in the provision of the Services (the "Assigned Employees") full and

46

accurate details regarding the identity, number, age, sex, length of service, job title, grade and terms and conditions of employment of any other matters affecting each of those Assigned Employees who it is expected, if they remain in the employment of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (or of sub-contractor) until immediately before the Termination Date, would be Returning Employees (the "Retendering Information")

- 3.1.2. provide the Retendering Information promptly and at no cost to the Council;
- 3.1.3. notify the Council forthwith in writing of any material changes to the Retendering Information promptly as and when such changes arise;
- 3.1.4. be precluded from making any material increase or decrease in the numbers of Assigned Employees other than in the ordinary course of business and with the Council's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed)
- 3.1.5. be precluded from making any increase in the remuneration or other change in the terms and conditions of the Assigned Employees other than in the ordinary course of business and with the Council's prior written consent (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) and;
- 3.2. Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited shall, and shall keep indemnified in full, the Council against all Direct Losses arising from any claim by any party as a result of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (or sub-contractor) falling to provide or promptly to provide the Council with any Retendering Information and /or employee Liability Information or as a result of any material inaccuracy on, or omission, from the Retendering Information to the extent that such information was originally provided to Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited by the Council and was materially inaccurate or incomplete when provided.
- 4. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENTOn the Termination Date or earlier termination of this Agreement, the parties agree that it is their intention that TUPE shall apply in respect of the provision thereafter of any service equivalent to any of the Services but the position shall be determined in accordance with the law as the Termination Date or earlier termination date and this paragraph 2.1 is without prejudice of such determination.
 - 4.2. For the purpose of this Schedule 8 "Returning Employees" shall mean those employees wholly or mainly engaged in the provision of the Services as the case may be as immediately before the Termination Date whose employment transfers to the Council or a Future Service Provider pursuant to TUPE. Upon termination of this Agreement for whatever reason (such date being termed the "Return Date") the provisions of this paragraph 2.2 will apply;
 - 4.2.1.Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited shall, or shall procure that, all wages, salaries and other benefits of the Returning Employees and other employees or former employees of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited or any sub-contractor who has been engaged in the provision of the Service and all PAYE tax deductions and national insurance contributions relating thereto in respect of the employment of the Returning Employees and such other employees or former employees of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (or sub-contractor) up to the Return Data are satisfied.
 - 4.3. without prejudice to paragraph 2.2.1;
 - 4.3.1. Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited shall remain (and procure that any subcontractor shall remain) responsible for all Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (or sub contactors) employees (other than the Returning Employees) on or after the expiry or termination of this Agreement and shall indemnify the Council and any Future Service Provider against all Direct Losses incurred by the Council or Future Service Provider resulting from any claim whatsoever, whether arising before on or after the Return Date by or on behalf of any Dragonfly Management (Bolsover)

Limited or sub-contractors employees who do not constitute the Returning Employees.

- 4.3.2. The Council shall ensure or shall procure that all wages, salaries and other benefits of the Returning Employees (who has been engaged in the provision of the Services) and all PAYE tax deductions and national insurance contributions relating thereto in respect of the employment of the Returning Employees on and after the Return Data are satisfied;
- 4.3.3. In respect of those employees who constitute Returning Employees, Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited shall indemnify the Council and any Future Service Provider against all Direct Losses incurred by the Council and any Future Service Provider resulting from any claim whatsoever by or on behalf of any Returning Employee (whether any such claim, attributable to the period up to and on the Return Date, arises before, on or after the Return Date) including but not limited to any failure by Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited (or sub-contractor) to comply with its or their obligations under Regulation 13 and 14 TUPE and any award of compensation on Regulation 15 of TUPE and / or Article 6 of the Directive as if such legislation applied, even if it does not in fact apply save to the extent that any such failure to comply arises as a result of an act or omission of the Council or any Future Service Provider.
- 4.4. The Council shall be entitled to assign the benefit of this indemnity to any Future Service Provider.

5. SUB-CONTRACTORS

5.1. In the event that Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited enters into any subcontract in connection with this Agreement, it shall impose obligations on its sub-contractors in the same terms as those imposed on it pursuant to paragraph 2 of this Schedule 8 shall procure that the sub-contractor complies with such terms. Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited shall indemnify and keep the Council indemnified in full against all losses claims, expenses and liabilities, incurred by the Council or any Future Service Provider as a result of, or in connection with, any failure on the part of Dragonfly Management (Bolsover) Limited to comply with such terms.

6. PENSIONS FOR ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES

6.1. Contractor to become an Admission Body

6.1.1. Where the Contractor or a sub-contract employs any Eligible Employees from a Relevant Transfer Date and wises to offer those Eligible Employees membership of the LGPS, the Contract shall procure that it and/or each relevant sub-contractor shall become and Admission Body. The Contract shall before the Relevant Transfer Date executive and procure that each relevant sub-contractor executes a Contractor Admission Agreement which will have effect from and include the Relevant Transfer Date

6.2. Contractor Admission Agreement

6.2.1.The Council shall before each Relevant Transfer Date execute Contractor Admission Agreement(s) referred to pin paragraph 4.1 (Contractor to become an Admission Body).

6.3. Indemnity for Breach of the Contractor Admission Agreement

6.3.1.Without prejudice to the generality of this section 4, the Contract hereby indemnifies the Council and/or any Future Contractor and, in each case, their sub-contractors from and against all Direct Losses suffered or incurred by it or them which arise from any breach by the Contractor or any sub-contractor of the terms of the Contractor Admission Agreement to the extent that such liability arises before or as a result of the termination or expiry of this Agreement (howsoever caused)

6.4. Indemnity or Bond

6.4.1. Without prejudice to the generality of the requirements of this section, the Contractor shall procure that it and each relevant sub-contractor shall as soon as reasonably practicable obtain any indemnity or bond required in accordance with the applicable Contractor Admission Agreement.

6.5. Right to Set-Off

6.5.1.In accordance with paragraph 12 (c) of the LGPS Regulations, the Council shall have a right to set off against any payments due to the Contractor under this Agreement an amount equal to any overdue employer and employee contributions and other payments (and interested payable under the LGPS Regulations) due from the Contractor or from any relevant sub-contractor (as applicable) under the Contractor Admission Agreement.

6.6. Contractor Ceases to be an Admission Body

- 6.6.1.If the Contractor or any sub-contractor employs any Eligible Employees from a Relevant Transfer Date and:
 - a) The Contractor or any sub-contractor does not wish to offer those Eligible Employees membership of the LGPS; or
 - b) The Council, the Contractor or any relevant Sub-Contractor are of the opinion that it is not possible to operates the provisions of paragraph 4.1 (Contractor to become an Admission Body) to 4.5 inclusive; or
 - c) If for any reason after the Relevant Transfer Date the Contractor or any relevant subcontractor ceases to be an Admission Body other than on the date of termination or expiry of this Agreement or because it ceases to employ any Eligible Employees,

Then the provisions of paragraph 4.1 (Contractor to become and Admission Body) to 4.5 (Right to Set-Off) inclusive shall not apply (without prejudice to any rights of the Contract under those paragraphs) and the provisions of paragraph 4.7 (Contractor Scheme) shall apply.

6.6.2. If the Contractor or any sub-contractor ceases to employ any Eligible Employee in delivery of the Services, then the Contractor Admission Agreement shall expire in accordance with its terms and the Contractor (or sub-contractor) shall cease to be an Admission Body

6.7. Contractor Scheme

- 6.7.1. Where paragraph 4.1 does not apply, the Contractor shall or shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall not later than the Relevant Transfer Date or the Cessation Date (as the case may be) nominated to the Council in writing the occupational pension scheme or schemes which it proposes shall be "the Contractor Scheme" for the purposes of this paragraph 2.7. Such pension scheme or schemes must be:
 - a) Established within 3 months prior to the Relevant Transfer Date or Cessation Date (as the case may be);
 - b) Reasonably acceptable to the Council (such acceptance not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);
 - c) A registered pension scheme for the purposes of Part 4 of the Finance Act 2004; and
 - d) Certified by an actuary nominated by the Council in accordance with relevant guidance produced by the Government Actuary's Department as providing benefits which are the same as, or broadly comparable to or better than those benefits provided by the LGPS.

- 6.7.2. The Contractor undertakes to the Council (for the benefit of the Council itself and for the Council as agent and trustee for the benefit of the Eligible Employees) that it shall and shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall procure that:
 - a) The Eligible Employees shall by 3 months before the Relevant Transfer Date of the Cessation Date (as the case may be) be offered membership of the Contractor Scheme with effect from and including the Relevant Transfer Date or Cessation Date (as the case may be);
 - b) The Contractor Scheme shall provide benefits in respect of the Eligible Employees' periods of service on and after the Relevant Transfer Date or Cessation date (as the case may be) which in actually nominated by the Council in accordance with relevant guidance produced by the Government Actuary's Department shall certify to be broadly comparable to or better than benefits which the eligible employees were entitled to under the LGPS at the Relevant Transfer Date or the Cessation date (as the case may be);
 - c) On and from the relevant transfer date organisation date (the case may be) until the earlier of:
 - 6.7.2.c.1. 3 months after the date on which the Eligible Employees are first able to join the Contractor Scheme; and
 - 6.7.2.c.2. The date on which the Eligible Employees joined the Contractor Scheme,

The Contractor shall provide death benefits for and in respect of the eligible employees which are certified by an actuary nominated by the council in accordance with relevant guidance produced by the Government Actuary's Department as being the same as, broadly comparable to or better than those they would otherwise have been provided in respect of those eligible employees by the LGPS;

- d) If the Contractor Scheme is terminated, a replacement pension scheme shall be provided with immediate effect for those Eligible Employees who are still employed by the Contractor or relevant sub-contractor. The replacement scheme must comply with this paragraph 4.7 (Contractor Scheme) as if it were the Contractor Scheme; and
- e) before the Relevant Transfer Date or Cessation Date (as the case may be) the trustees of the Contractor Scheme shall undertake take by deed to the Council that they shall cooperate with the provisions of paragraph 4.7 (Contracts Scheme), and 4.8 (Undertaking from the Contractor) to the extent applicable to them.
- f) The Contractor shall, and shall procure any relevant sub-contractors shall, comply with any terms for bulk transfers from the LGPS to the Contractor Scheme following the Relevant Transfer Date and any subsequent bulk transfers on termination or expiry of this Agreement as shall be reasonably required by the Council and/or the Administrating Authority

6.8. Undertaking from the Contractor

- 6.8.1.The Contractor undertakes to the Council (for the benefit of the Council itself and for the Council as agent and trustee for the benefit of the Eligible Employees) that:
 - a) All information which the Council or their respective professional advisers may reasonably requests from the Contractor or any relevant sub- contract for the admission of the LGPS or consenting any other matters raised in paragraph 4.7 (Contractor Scheme), or in this paragraph 4.8 shall be supplied to them as expediently as possible;
 - b) It shall not (and shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall not), without the consent in writing of the Council (which will only be given subject to the payment by the

Contractor or the relevant sub-contractor of such reasonable costs as the Council may require) consent to instigate, encourage or assist any event which could impose on the council a cost in respect of any Eligible Employee greater than the cost which would have been payable in respect that Eligible Employee had that consent, instigation, encouragement or assistance not being given;

- c) Until the Relevant Transfer Date, it shall not (and shall procure that any relevant subcontractor shall not) issue any announcements (whether in writing or not) to the Eligible Employees concerning the matters stated in paragraphs 4.1 (Contractor to become an Admission Body) to 4.6 (Contractor ceases to be in Admission Body) inclusive without the consent in writing of the council (not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed);
- d) It shall not (and shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall not) take or omit to take any action which would materially affect the benefits under the LGPS or under the Contractor Scheme of any Eligible Employees who are or will be employed wholly or partially in connection with the Services without the prior written consent of the Council (not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed) provided that the Contractor and/or such sub-contractor will be so entitled without the requirement of consent to give effect to any pre-existing contractual obligations to any Eligible Employees; and
- e) It shall (and shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall) offer any of its Eligible Employees who ceased to be engaged in the provision of the Services and thereby ceased to be eligible for membership of the LGPS, membership of the Contract Scheme immediately after ceasing to be so engaged (unless such Eligible Employee has voluntarily agreed to the loss of their LGPS membership as part of the change).

6.9. Enforceability by Eligible Employees

6.9.1.This section (Pensions for Eligible Employees) shall be enforceable by the Eligible Employees.

6.10. Claims from Eligible Employees or Trade Unions

- 6.10.1. The Contractor hereby indemnifies the Council and/or any Future Contractor and, in each case, their sub-contractors from and against all Direct Losses suffered and incurred by it or them which arise from claims by Eligible Employees of the Contractor and/or of any sub-contractor or by any trade unions, elected employee representatives or staff associates in respect of all or any such Eligible Employees which losses:
 - a) Relate to pension rights in respect of periods of employment on and after the Relevant Transfer Date, until the date of termination or apiary of this Agreement; or
 - b) Arise out of the failure of the Contractor and/or any relevant sub-contractor to comply with the provisions of this paragraph 4 before the date of termination or expiry of this Agreement.

6.11. Liability for Costs

6.11.1. The costs of the Employer necessarily and reasonably incurred in connection with the Contractor Admission Agreement and/or of obtaining the necessary certification of comparability in accordance with paragraph 4.7. (Contractor Scheme) shall be borne by the Contractor.

7. Transfer to another Employer

7.1. Save on expiry or termination of this Agreement, if the employment of any Eligible Employee transfers to another employer (by way of a transfer under TUPE) the Contractor shall (and shall procure that any relevant Sub-Contractor shall):

- 7.1.1. consult with and inform those Eligible Employees of the pension provisions relating to that transfer; and
- 7.1.2. procure that the employer to which the Eligible Employees are transferred (the "New Employer") complies with the provisions of this section 2 provided that references to the "Sub-Contractor" will become references to the New Employer, references to "Relevant Transfer Date" will become references to the date of the transfer to the New Employer and references to "Eligible Employees" will become references to the Eligible Employees so transferred to the New Employer.

8. Pension Issues on Expiry or Termination

- 8.1. The Contractor shall (and shall procure that each relevant Sub-Contractor shall):
 - 8.1.1. maintain such documents and information as will be reasonably required to manage the pension rights of and aspects of any outward transfer of any person engaged or employed by the Contractor or any sub-contractor in the provision of the Services on the expiry or termination of this Agreement (including without limitation identification of the Eligible Employees);
 - 8.1.2. promptly provide to the Employer such documents and information mentioned in paragraph 6.1.1 which the Employer may reasonably request in advance of the expiry or termination of this Agreement; and
 - 8.1.3. fully co-operate (and procure that the trustees of the Contractor's Scheme shall fully co-operate) with the reasonable requests of the Employer relating to any administrative tasks necessary to deal with the pension rights of and aspects of any onward transfer of any person engaged or employed by the Contractor or any Sub-Contractor in the provision of the Services on the expiry of termination of this Agreement.

9. Funding of initial valuation shortfalls and exit valuation shortfalls in respect of Eligible Employees

- 9.1. At the Relevant Transfer Date, the Fund will be deemed to be fully funded in respect of the Eligible Employees and the Council will be responsible for any underfunding prior to the Relevant Transfer Date. Any underfunding will be established by the actuarial valuation of the Funda t the date the Contractor or a relevant sub-contractor enters into an Admission Agreement in respect of the Eligible Employees. The arrangements regarding any payment to be made to the Fund for any underfunding up to the Transfer Date will be agreed between the Council and the Fund.
- 9.2. At the date of the expiry or earlier termination of the Agreement, the Contractor will obtain, or procure that the Administering Authority obtains, an actuarial valuation of the Fund (or revision thereto). It the Contractor is required to pay any contributions to the LGPS representing any funding deficit (the "Exit Contribution") the Council shall reimburse the Contractor the amount of the Exit Contribution save to the extent that the Exit Contribution results from any of the matters set out in the clause 7.2. Any such reimbursement is made without 20 Business Days of the relevant actuarial valuation.
- 9.3. The Contractor accepts responsibility for any Exit Contribution to the extent it results from one or more of the following:
 - 9.3.1. The grant by the Contractor of early retirement requests in relation to Eligible Employees;
 - 9.3.2. Granting of augmentation of benefits in relation to Eligible Employee in relation to the Fund, including, but not limited, to an augmentation under Regulation 31 of the LGPS Regulations, which is an additional to any augmentation that an Eligible Employee is entitled to as a right under the LGPS Regulations;
 - 9.3.3. The reduction or waiver of any contributions due from an Eligible Employee;

76

- 9.3.4. The award of pay increases to Eligible Employees which in aggregate exceed;
 - a) Ther percentage rate allowed for pay increases in the latest valuation of the Fund prior to the award of the pay increase in question; or
 - Any pay increases that the Contractor is required to make by law (including, for these purposes, pursuant to its obligations arising under, or as a consequence of, the TUPE Regulations, any code of practice an/or any National Joint Council for Local Government services arrangements); or
 - c) Any pay increases that the Contractor is obliged to offer pursuant to the terms and conditions of employment in place with the Eligible Employees as at the Relevant Transfer Date (including under any collective agreement);
- 9.3.5. The termination of the employment contract of an Eligible Employee is aged 55 or over at the time, by reason of redundancy or in the interests of efficiency or otherwise allowing such employee to retire on those grounds;
- 9.3.6.The termination of the employment contract of an Eligible Employee on the grounds of permanent ill health or infirmity of mind or body which renders the employee permanently incapable pf efficiently discharging their duties of their current employment, in accordance with Regulation 35 of the LGPS Regulations;
- 9.3.7.Brining the deferred or active benefit of an Eligible Employee into payment through consent to retiring voluntarily on or after the age of 55:
- 9.3.8.Exercising any discretion to extend the statutory time frames under Regulation 22 of the LGPS Regulations; or
- 9.3.9. Waving any reduction to benefits under Regulation 30(6) of the LGPS Regulations.

10. Payment of contributions to the Fund and any excess/reduction below the Initial Employer Contribution Rate

- 10.1. In respect of contributions to be paid to the Fund by the Contractor or any relevant subcontractor, subject to paragraph 7 above, the Contractor or relevant sub-contractor shall pursuant to the Contractor Admission Agreement pay to the Administering Authority for the credit of the Fund such contributions as are required under Regulation 67 of the LGPS Regulations in respect of the Eligible Employees.
- 10.2. If the contributions payable under paragraph 8.1 exceed the Initial Employer Contribution Rate, then the amount which exceeds the Initial Employer contribution Rate shall be added as an adjustment to the amount due to the Contractor for each month during the period during which the contributions payable in accordance with the Contractor Admission Agreement exceed the Initial Employer Contribution Rate.
- 10.3. If the contributions payable under paragraph 8.1 decrease below the Initial Contribution Rate, the reduction below the Initial Employer Contribution Rate shall be subtracted as an adjustment to the amount due to the Contractor for each month during the period during which the contributions payable in accordance with Contractor Admission Agreement are less than the Initial Employer Contribution Rate.
- 10.4. For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions of paragraph 8.1 above shall not apply where any such change in Employer Contribution Rate raises from any matters for which the Contractor is responsible pursuant to paragraph 7.3.4 above.

11. Discretionary benefits

11.1. Where the Contractor or any relevant sub-contractor is an Admission Body, the Contractor shall and/or shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall award benefits

53

77

(where permitted) to the Eligible Employees under the Compensation Regulations and/or the LGPS in circumstances where the Eligible Employees would have received such benefits had they still be employed by the Council.

- 11.2. Where the award of benefits under paragraph 9.1 is not permitted under the Compensation Regulations and/or the LGPS, or the Contractor and/or a sub-contractor is not an Admission Body, the Contractor shall and/or shall procure that any sub-contractor shall award benefits to the Eligible Employees which are equivalent to the benefits the Eligible Employees would have received under the Compensation Regulations and/or the LGPS in circumstances where the Eligible Employees would have received such benefits had they still been employed by the Council.
- 11.3. Under paragraphs 9.1 and 9.2, where such benefits are of a discretionary nature, they shall be awarded on the basis of the Council's written policy or Administering Authority's written policy in relation to such benefits at the time of the Relevant Transfer Date (which the Council shall provide upon request). Where the payment of such benefits is not, for whatever reason, possible, the Contractor shall and/or shall procure that any relevant sub-contractor shall compensate the Eligible Employees in a manner which is broadly comparable or equivalent in cash terms.

12. **DEFINITIONS**

12.1. For the purposes of this Schedule, the following terms shall have the meanings given to them below:

PHRASE	MEANING
Admission Agreement	an admission agreement entered into in accordance with Regulation 5 of the LGPS Regulations (as amended from time to time) by the Council and the Contractor or Sub-Contractor (as appropriate);
Admission Body	means a transferee admission body for the purposes of Regulation 5 of the LGPS Regulations
Administering Authority	means [insert the LGPS administrator (likely to be the County Council for Bolsover)] acting in its capacity as the administering authority of the [Name of the Pension Fund] Pension Fund for the purposes of the LGPS Regulations;
Cessation Date	means any date on which the Contractor or relevant Sub-Contractor ceases to be an Admitted Body other than as a result of the termination of this Agreement or because it ceases to employ any Eligible Employees;
Commencement Date	the date on which this Agreement commences as set out in the definitions above
Compensation Regulations	means the Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and Wales) Regulations 2006;

Contractor Admission Agreementan admission agreement entered into in accordance
with Schedule 2 Part 3 of the LGPS Regulations (as
amended from time to time) by the Council and the
Contractor or Sub-Contractor (as appropriate);Direct Lossesmeans all damages, losses, indebtedness, claims,
options appropriate or propriate or pr

actions, cash, expenses (including the cost of legal or professional services, legal costs of being an agent/client, client paying basis), proceedings, demands and charges whether arising under statute, contract or at common law but to avoid doubt to avoid Indirect Losses;

Directive means the EC Acquired Rights Directive 2001/23/EC as amended

Eligible Employees(a) those Transferring Employees who are active
members of or eligible to join the LGPS on the
Commencement Date;

(b) other Relevant Employees who are active members of or eligible to join the LGPS as at the applicable Relevant Transfer Date;

has the meaning set out in paragraph 7.2 above

means the [insert pension fund name] within the LGPS

means a service provider who shall provide any service equivalent to any of the Services after expiry or earlier

means loss of profits, loss of use, loss of production, loss of business, loss of business opportunity, or any claim for consequential loss or for indirect loss of any nature

Employee Liability Information means the information which a transferor is obliged to notify to a transferee pursuant to regulation 11(1) of TYPE regarding any person employed by them who is assigned to the organised grouping of resources or employees which are the subject of a Relevant Transfer and also such employees as fall within Regulation 11(40 of TUPE

[insert name]

Existing Contractor

Exit Contribution

Final Employee List

First Employee List

Fund

Future Contractor

Indirect Losses

Initial Employer Contribution Rate

means [xx]% of Pensionable Pay

termination of this Contract

79

LGPS Regulations	means the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013;
Local Government Pension Scheme	means the Local Government Pension Scheme established pursuant to regulations made by the Secretary of State in exercise of powers under Sections 7 and 12 of the Superannuation Act 1972 as amended from time to time;
Pensionable Pay	has the meaning set out in the LGPS Regulations
Relevant Employees	means the employees who are the subject of a Relevant Transfer, and includes the Transferring Employees
Relevant Transfer	means a relevant transfer for the purposes of the Regulations;
Relevant Transfer Date	the date on which a Relevant Employee transfers to the Contractor and/or one or more Sub-Contractor by virtue of a Relevant Transfer
Retendering Information	has the meaning set out in paragraph
Returning Employees	has the meaning set out in paragraph
Services	is defined in the Agreement
Sub-Contractor	means a person to whom the Contractor sub-contracts any of its obligations to deliver the Services
Transferring Employee	means any employee of the Existing Contractor whose contract of employment transfers to the Contractor under TUPE at the Commencement Date as listed below
TUPE	means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (246/2006) and or any other regulations enacted for the purpose of implementing the Directive into English law.

SCHEDULE - 10 DATA PROCESSING

1. PROCESSING BY THE SUPPLIER

- 1.1 Personal data will be processed by the Supplier to provide services to the Authority under this agreement.
- 1.2 The table lists the types of data notably personal and special category data to be shared, the data purposes and how the information will be shared securely.
- 1.3 Aggregated or anonymised data and other non-personal data such as management information, performance information may also be shared between the Parties to support the agreement and facilitate an effective working relationship.
- 1.4 Information shared must be fit for purpose meaning that it must be adequate, relevant, and not contain excessive detail which is beyond that required for the purpose.
- 1.5 The processing of personal data will continue throughout the duration of the agreement.

1. TYPES OF PERSONAL DATA

1.1 The table lists the types of personal data.

110

2. CATEGORIES OF DATA SUBJECT

2.1 These are employees, Elected Members, council tenants and leaseholders, residents, customers, tourists, visitors, and business owners and tenants. Any individual in receipt of a service which falls under this agreement.

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
1.	 Human Resources Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, date of birth, postcode, Next of Kin) Medical conditions Equalities Monitoring 	To provide a HR service to Dragonfly Recruitment & selection Learning & development Sickness & welfare Capability & disciplinary 	Yes Health Trade Union Criminal record Ethnicity Sexuality	Two way sharing	Regular Approx. 100 employees	By internal email Direct access to HR21 which has appropriate access controls in place
2.	 Payroll system Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, date of birth, postcode) Salary Information Bank Details Tax Information Deductions Trade union membership Pension/ Voluntary contributions for pension Westfield Charitable deductions Professional fees – membership Car registration details Childcare vouchers Next of kin 	To provide a payroll service to Dragonfly • Process monthly payroll • Provide Pension Administration	Yes Medical conditions Trade union membership 	Two way sharing	Regular Approx. 100 employees	Automatic payroll run. Direct input into HR21 for changes to address/bank/next of kin/equalities monitoring. Payslips for most accessed on HR21, the remainder passed through internal mail or posted.

Types of personal data to be shared – BDC (Authority) and Dragonfly (Supplier)

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
				GIN	C CR-1	Monthly pension return through a secure portal, I- Connect, and pension forms sent through secure email to Derbyshire Pension Fund.
			A			Full Payment Submission and Employer Payment Summary sent to HMRC monthly using Frontier Software. By Internal Email
3.	 Health & Safety Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, date of birth, postcode) Employee details for training records and accidents reporting 	To provide a health and safety service to Dragonfly	Yes Health data contained within accident reports (EARS)	Two way for all data identified	 Regular Could potentially involve all Dragonfly employees at some point 	Encrypted emails

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
			Sensitive data contained within the employee protection register (EPR)			
4.	 Data Protection Data subject personal identifiers (including name, address, date of birth, postcode) Employee details for data breaches 	To provide data protection advice and data breach management to Dragonfly To administer data subject access requests and other rights under GDPR exercised by data subjects	Yes (if provided by the data subject / included in the data breach)	Two way sharing	As and when required	By email (which is encrypted between the two organisations)
5.	 Personal identifiers (name, work email address, staff photos and phone numbers, including personal mobiles numbers (for business continuity only) Access to all systems and data held by Dragonfly. 	To provide an ICT service to Dragonfly including the administration of employee accounts and helpdesk requests.	No. Potentially – may be present in systems being accessed by ICT	Two way sharing	As and when required	By email, Microsoft Teams, or SharePoint (which is encrypted between the two organisations) Over the Telephone.

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
		ICT will require access to Dragonfly systems and data to provide technical administrative support when requested by Dragonfly under the ICT SLA.			E OP	Via the Service desk self-service tools or Granicus CRM forms.
6.	Personal data as required to undertake legal actions including:	To provide legal advice	Possibly	Possibly	As and when instructed	By email (which is encrypted
	 Giving general advice on housing matters Business centre tenancies Housing disrepair claims Debt recovery 	To take legal instruction To carry out legal action	Health Racial / ethnic origin	Two-way sharing		between the two organisations) Over the Telephone
	Possibly					
	Types of data:					
	 Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, date of birth, postcode) Medical information - Found in e.g. tenancy information / witness statements / legal documents Tenancy information 	FIDE				

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
7.	 Open Housing System Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, forwarding/correspondence address, date of birth, postcode) Language codes (bold print, large letters required etc.) Flags - PVP (Potentially Violent Person), Equality and Diversity (i.e., disability type or need), Right to Buy, Universal Credit Direct to Landlord Diary notes (categorised Person, Place and Tenancy) Informal complaint details Right to Buy application – status, property details/valuation and details 	To facilitate the undertaking of repairs appointments / planned maintenance schemes / gas servicing etc.	Yes Health/disability information (via flags & codes)	Two way sharing	Ongoing access required by both parties Approx 5000 council properties	Direct system access (Open Housing) System administration undertaken by BDC Housing Personal data such as Rent accounts will be restricted as not required by Dragonfly
8.	Information received by BDC Customer Services from customers requesting services delivered by Dragonfly Examples: • Requests for repairs • Gas Service	To enable Dragonfly to deliver a customer service to council tenants and leaseholders, residents, and the public on behalf of the Authority	Health/disability information (if provided by the tenant and/or resident)	(Usually) One way to Dragonfly	Frequent requests Circa 5000 council properties	By email (which is encrypted between the two organisations) Via the Self online tools or Granicus CRM forms

	Description of Data Shared / Types of Personal Data Shared	Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
	 Drainage enquiries Dangerous structure reports New Build property enquiries Asset management enquiries Relevant customer change of circumstances Complaints Third Party information (relatives/contractors) Data Types: Direct personal identifiers (including name, address, postcode, Age,) Language codes (bold print, large letters required etc.) Flags - PVP (Potentially Violent Person), Equality and Diversity Contact details Tel/email Medical information 	To enable Dragonfly to undertake work, investigations and provide /responses	Health/disability information (via flags & codes on Open Housing system)	SIN	E OR-1	Open Housing system CCC Admin system via email
Э.	Information received by Dragonfly requesting services administered by the Authority. Examples: • Customer email or letter requesting a service	Customer Service	Yes if shared by the customer	One way to BDC	No regular frequency, as and when received	By email (which is encrypted between the two organisations) Over the Telephone

Purpose of sharing	Sensitive (special category) data* included	Two way or one way sharing / access	Approximate volume and frequency	Method of secure transfer
			R	
	Purpose of sharing	(special category) data* included	(special category) data* included access	(special category) data* included one way sharing / access volume and frequency

88

*race, ethnic, origin, political opinion, religious belief, TU membership, sexual life, alleged criminal activity, criminal record, physical or mental health

ship, sexu.

own of the structure of



Bolsover District Council

Meeting of Local Growth Scrutiny 11 December 2023

Review of Bolsover District's Regeneration Frameworks

Classification	This report is public.
Report By	Chris Fridlington Director of Economic Development
Contact Officer	Chris Fridlington

PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is twofold:

- to summarise the key findings from the review of the Bolsover District Regeneration Framework undertaken by the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee in 2022/23; and
- to provide recommendations informed by this summary for further consideration by the Committee.

REPORT DETAILS

1. Background

- 1.1 In 2017, the Council published the Bolsover District Regeneration Framework (the Regeneration Framework) that consisted of four documents that set out a strategy for a series of public realm improvements and regeneration projects in each of the four largest settlements in the District namely Bolsover, Clowne, Shirebrook and South Normanton, and their respective nearest, neighbouring villages.
- 1.2 It was intended that the Regeneration Framework would be developed alongside the preparation of the now adopted Bolsover District Local Plan ("the Local Plan") to help shape and influence regeneration of the District over the same fifteenyear plan period from 2018 to 2033 by:
 - providing the framework for targeted and coordinated public/private sector interventions;
 - informing funding applications for town centre investment and regeneration;

- addressing the key priorities identified in Joint Economic Development and Housing Strategy;
- forming the basis of work to deliver economic growth and for aligning the district's priorities to maximise inward investment;
- forming part of the evidence base for the emerging Local Plan, informing its place specific policies and proposals;
- highlighting the importance of "place-making", in matching the pace and nature of growth within the district, aligned with the physical characteristics of each discrete part of the District; and
- raising public awareness of place-making proposals and place marketing leading to improved quality and perception of place.
- 1.3 A number of these objectives remain important to the Council and its local communities. In addition, achieving many of these objectives will still promote and encourage the ongoing viability and vitality of the local economy and regeneration of the District's high streets. Moreover, the place-making agenda set out in the Regeneration Framework is embedded in the adopted Bolsover District Local Plan.
- 1.5 However, the current economic and policy context is very different from 2016 when the Regeneration Framework was produced and 2017 when it was adopted by the Council. A series of events including the Covid pandemic and war in Ukraine have disrupted the local, national and global economy and the Joint Economic Development and Housing Strategy has since been superseded by a range of other strategies.
- 1.6 In addition Bolsover District Council has had two District elections since 2017. Most recently, 21 new Councillors were elected in May 2023. In 2020, the Council adopted its Ambition: Vision Bolsover which superseded all previous Council Plans and corporate performance frameworks. With the emerging East Midlands Combined County Authority and the proposed election of a Regional Mayor in May 2024, the Council is now reviewing and aligning its priorities to ensure it is able to maximise on all potential opportunities.
- 1.7 Therefore, it is both highly appropriate and timely to review whether the Regeneration Framework remains an appropriate mechanism to promote and encourage strategic priorities in line with the Council's ambition:

'To become a dynamic, self-sufficient and flexible Council that delivers excellent services, whilst adapting to local aspirations and acting as the economic and environmental driver for Bolsover District'.

1.8 Consequently, the purpose of this report is to bring together key findings from the comprehensive review recently undertaken by the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee of each of the four documents that make up the Regeneration Framework.

1.9 The report will then use these key findings and the lessons learned from this review to recommend what could be done if the Regeneration Framework is no longer considered to be the right mechanism to deliver on the Council's growth ambitions for the District over the next four years.

2 Details of Review

<u>Methodology</u>

- 2.1 Over four separate meetings, each of the documents in the Regeneration Framework were reviewed in turn within the normal Local Growth Scrutiny Committee meetings. This was done in the following order: Bolsover, Shirebrook, Clowne, and South Normanton. The relevant Ward members, Portfolio Holders and officers from the Partnerships Team and Business Growth Team also attended the meetings as appropriate.
- 2.2 A separate officer report summarising how the Regeneration Framework has been implemented to date and an update on progress against the list of projects set out in the Framework was submitted to each of the four meetings and each report was focused on the place and associated supporting documents under discussion at those meetings.
- 2.3 The officer report included a scorecard that tracked progress on each of the projects listed in the Regeneration Framework. The relevant Town Centre Health Checks (produced by the Planning Policy and Housing Strategy Team) and other relevant documents were included in the agenda pack to provide additional supporting information.
- 2.4 The provision of this information, officer updates and the opportunity for discussion within the meetings allowed the Committee to fully evaluate the following key areas of interest:
 - progress to date on all projects identified within the four main settlements;
 - progress to date on all projects identified within the villages and hamlets neighbouring the main settlements;
 - to what extent has the Regeneration Framework enabled the Council to secure funding for development/regeneration; and
 - to what extent would the current Regeneration Framework help the Council address current issues affecting the main settlements and their respective neighbouring villages and hamlets.

The following sections of this report set out the key findings on these points and the lessons learnt that flow from this review.

Project Delivery

- 2.5 The review identified that a number of regeneration projects listed in the Regeneration Framework had been completed across the District. Where it had not been possible to progress a project because of changes made to the land or buildings identified in the Regeneration Framework since 2017, these were also identified.
- 2.6 It should be noted that the 'pipeline' of projects identified in the Regeneration Framework was intended to be delivered over 15 years. The scorecards completed for the review show the progress that has been made in the first five years since 2017.
- 2.7 The review revealed that there were over 100 separate projects listed and that it was identified that around 50% of these projects were and remain outside of the Council's direct control, and so it is not only easier to see that progress has been made but also that the Regeneration Framework could be said to contain a list of desirable interventions (almost a 'wish list') rather than a deliverable strategic masterplan for the District.
- 2.8 The scorecard approach was useful because it helpfully prompted further discussion around how successful projects have come forward and to what extent the Regeneration Framework is useful in successful project delivery not least by generating inward investment and/or supporting applications made by the Council for Government funding.

Funding

- 2.9 Throughout the review, it was recognised that funding is a key component of successful project delivery and it was found the Regeneration Framework does not, in itself weigh heavily in decision making on funding applications. In addition, changes in the town centres since 2017 mean that the context of any future funding bids may be different at the time of the application.
- 2.10 In addition, the intervening time between community engagement on the Regeneration Framework, the introduction of the Levelling Up Act and the launch of funding opportunities means that the Regeneration Framework can no longer be relied on to demonstrate an up-to-date link with the needs of the District's local communities as they are today.
- 2.11 Therefore, there is a clear rationale to support the conclusion reached during the review of the Regeneration Framework that it has outlived its useful life (in its current form). In addition, the review highlighted that the Regeneration Framework makes little if no reference to policy issues that have become more prominent since 2017 including active travel, climate action and transition to net zero, biodiversity net gain, 5G and digital connectivity more generally.
- 2.12 However, another key finding from the review was that the lack of costings for any of the projects in the Regeneration Framework is also a significant obstacle to project delivery. In simple terms, if there are no up to date costings, a project cannot be assessed as either affordable or deliverable or even value for money.

- 2.13 Consequently, without any funding identified to carry out any preliminary works on any projects in the Regeneration Framework (typically RIBA Stages 1-3) and without spending a significant amount of money to do this work, it is not possible to conclude how much of the Regeneration Framework remains deliverable.
- 2.14 It is equally not apparent that the Regeneration Framework still sets out the most impactful interventions in light of changes to the policy context, technological advances and changes in the economy since 2017 and it is therefore not possible to conclude that refreshing the Regeneration Framework (as it stands) would be value for money or represent the best mechanism to deliver change across the District over the next four years.

Place Making

- 2.15 During the process of stakeholder engagement in 2015/16, the Regeneration Framework was successful in capturing a desire to make Bolsover District a better place to live and work, and it was clear from the more recent review of the Regeneration Framework that this desire has not diminished across the Council. That said, it was also clear from representations from some Members that the current Regeneration Framework is no longer a major factor in helping the Council address current issues affecting the main settlements and their respective neighbouring villages and hamlets to any significant extent.
- 2.16 Nonetheless, there is a risk that expectations placed on the Framework and what might be achieved by a review exceed what either or both could or should be expected to deliver. Similarly, there is a risk of ending up in the 'same place' as we are now if the outcome of the review was simply updating the list of projects.
- 2.17 As the review of the Regeneration Framework progressed, there was also an increasing recognition that a public consultation may need to take place to identify up-to-date priority projects that would be demonstrably aligned with the needs of the local community, genuinely create a sense of civic pride and deliver socio-economic and environmental benefits on the ground.
- 2.18 This recognition aligned with the fact that the District's Town and Parish Councils would need to be engaged and closely involved with this place making agenda if it were to be successful and in part, this has since been actioned by the recent and ongoing work on developing a 'place narrative'*. This work will be significantly strengthened by the 'Investment Plan' development work that has also recently been commissioned.
- 2.19 For the avoidance of doubt a place narrative is a clear compelling story that sums up key elements of places and people in the council area. The narrative will reference location, culture, history future aspiration and community. It will focus on positive future direction while acknowledging any challenges.

3. <u>Reasons for Recommendations</u>

- 3.1 Throughout the review, it was clear that the principles behind the creation of the Regeneration Framework and what it set out to achieve are still relevant the Framework was intended to improve the quality and perception of Bolsover District as a place and the list of projects were designed to promote and encourage 'pride in place' through delivery of a series of projects across the District.
- 3.2 However, it was clear from the review that the Regeneration Framework no longer helps the Council compete for funding and it no longer accurately reflects the needs of the District's main settlements or their neighbouring hamlets and villages. These tasks are now better done by the Council's Vision Bolsover and its Ambitions portfolio and the Council's current work on refreshing Vision Bolsover.
- 3.4 Therefore, it is considered that the Regeneration Frameworks are not updated but used as background documents to the Council's ongoing work on developing a place-based 'narrative' for the District and where appropriate support the preparation of the Council's Investment Plan that is intended to shape, influence and deliver future economic development and regeneration in the District.
- 3.5 Consequently, it is recommended that this work is endorsed by the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee. Progress on these pieces of work will be brought back in due course.

4 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

4.1 Local Growth Scrutiny Committee could choose not to endorse the recommendation made in this report, however, the recommendation has been drafted to align with an overarching strategic approach to the issues raised in the report, planned work and work in progress. Therefore, the recommendation is actionable and within the capacity of the Council to deliver.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

- 1. That the Regeneration Frameworks are not updated but are superseded by the Council's ongoing work to develop a place-based narrative and investment plan as an appropriate mechanism to shape, influence and deliver future economic development and regeneration in the District.
- 2. That Local Growth Scrutiny Committee receive further reports on the development of these pieces of work in due course.

IMPLICATIONS;
Finance and Risk:Yes□No ⊠Details: There are no recommendations within this report that require financial resources beyond what is already allocated in the MTFP. Any new Town or Local Centre Management Strategies developed would require further reports to Executive for approval of objectives for delivery by the Council and associated costs.
On behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection):Yes⊠NoDetails:In carrying out scrutiny reviews the Council is exercising its scrutiny powers as laid out in Part 1A, s9F(2) of the Local Government Act 2000.On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council
Environment: Details: Across all the Framework areas there are a number of potential projects related to connectivity and the creation of greenways and cycle routes. These are likely to feature as part of the new plans developed and would require additional reports to Executive and input from partner agencies such as Derbyshire County Council.
Staffing: Yes No ⊠ Details: There are no staffing implications from this report.

On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION

Is the decision a Key Decision? A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact on two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure to the Council above the following thresholds: Revenue - £75,000 □ Capital - £150,000 □ ⊠ Please indicate which threshold applies	No
Is the decision subject to Call-In? (Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)	No

District Wards Significantly Affected	All Wards
Consultation: Leader / Deputy Leader ⊠ Executive ⊠ SLT □ Relevant Service Manager ⊠ Members ⊠ Public □ Other □	Details:

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment.

Economy

- Working with partners to support enterprise, innovation, jobs and skills
- Unlocking Development Potential: unlocking the capacity of major development sites
- Making the best use of our assets
- Promoting the District and working with partners to increase tourism

Environment

• Enhancing biodiversity and developing attractive neighbourhoods that residents feel proud of and take responsibility for

DOCUMENT	DOCUMENT INFORMATION					
Appendix No	Title					

Background Papers
(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when
preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below. If the report is going
to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers).
Previous Local Growth Scrutiny reports on the Regeneration Framework



Bolsover District Council

Meeting of the Local Growth Scrutiny Committee on 11th December 2023

<u>Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery – Post-</u> <u>Scrutiny Monitoring</u>

Report of the Chair of Local Growth Scrutiny Committee

Classification	This report is Public
Contact Officer	Chair of Local Growth Scrutiny Committee/Scrutiny Officer

PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT

• To present the Interim Post-Scrutiny Monitoring report on the recent Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery to Local Growth Scrutiny Committee.

REPORT DETAILS

1. Background

- 1.1 The Local Growth Scrutiny Committee agreed to undertake a Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery, as part of the 2021/22 Work Programme.
- 1.2 This review came at a time when the Council was under increasing pressure to not only ensure value for money from investments, but also to secure additional benefits and impact from programmes and developments. Development of our approach to Social Value and implementation of a Social Value Policy supports key objectives within the Business Growth Strategy.
- 1.3 Members welcomed the opportunity to work with fellow scrutiny Members in Climate Change & Communities Scrutiny Committee in reviewing the Council's approach to how social value outcomes are evaluated and Member's hope the new software tool will allow the council to evidence its outcomes more clearly to residents and partners.

2. <u>Details of Proposal or Information</u>

- 2.1 The Committee put together six recommendations which will hopefully assist the Council in embedding social value in to the wider policy structures and operational delivery of the Council.
- 2.2 This report acknowledges progress to date by officers implementing the recommendations.
- 2.3 To date 3 out of 6 recommendations have been achieved and 3 are overdue. The overdue recommendations are all actions that will be achieved upon formal approval of the Social Value Policy which is currently being prepared by the Partnership Team. It is intended that a draft Social Value policy will be brought to Local Growth Scrutiny Committee at its next meeting on 12th February 2024 with a view to it receiving final approval by Executive on 4th March 2024. A final monitoring report will be brought to this committee once the policy has been approved.

3. <u>Reasons for Recommendation</u>

- 3.1 Committee is required to monitor implementation of their recommendations in accordance with Part 3.6(1) of the Council's Constitution.
- 3.2 Members must note Executive's response to the review recommendations and agree to review progress on the approved recommendations. A progress report is submitted at six and twelve months' intervals, with any exceptions to expected delivery highlighted.

4 <u>Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection</u>

- 4.1 There are no alternative options. Members are required to note the service's response to progress against the review recommendations.
- 4.2 Committee is required to monitor implementation of their recommendations in accordance with Part 3.6(1) of the Council's Constitution and as such the report cannot be rejected.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

- 1. That Members note the progress against the review recommendations.
- 2. That Members acknowledge any exceptions to delivery and clarify the additional action required by the service.

<u>Finance and Risk:</u> Yes□ No ⊠
Details: The purchase of the new Social Value evaluation tool has been subject to a separate decision process and the costs are accounted for.
On behalf of the Section 151 Officer
Legal (including Data Protection): Yes□ No ⊠ Details: In carrying out scrutiny reviews the Council is exercising its scrutiny powers as laid out in Part 1A, s9F(2) of the Local Government Act 2000.
The Council has a statutory duty under s.149 Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity and to eliminate discrimination.
On behalf of the Solicitor to the Council Environment: Please identify (if applicable) how this proposal/report will help the Authority meet its carbon neutral target or enhance the environment. Details: Through the new social value evaluation tool, the Council will monitor the environmental social value outcomes from the Council's routine service delivery and targeted development programmes.
Staffing: Yes No ⊠ Details: There are no staffing implications from this report.
On behalf of the Head of Paid Service

DECISION INFORMATION

IMPLICATIONS;

Is the decision a Key Decision? A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact on two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure to the Council above the following thresholds: Revenue - £75,000 □ Capital - £150,000 □ ⊠ Please indicate which threshold applies	No
Is the decision subject to Call-In? (Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In)	No

District Wards Significantly Affected	None			
Consultation: Leader / Deputy Leader □ Executive ⊠ SLT □ Relevant Service Manager ⊠ Members ⊠ Public □ Other □	Yes Details: Relevant Service Managers and Portfolio Holder engaged during the review process.			

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment.

The review supports all three of the Corporate Ambitions: Our Economy:

• Working with partners to support enterprise, innovation, jobs and skills

Our Environment:

- Reducing our carbon footprint and supporting residents and businesses to reduce their footprint
- Actively engaging with partners to benefit our communities

Our Customers:

- Actively engaging with partners to benefit our customers
- Promoting equality and diversity and supporting vulnerable and disadvantaged people

Development of our approach to Social Value and implementation of a Social Value Policy will support Corporate target ECO.01 - Deliver a Business Growth Strategy by March 2021 that will support enterprise, innovation, jobs and skills and makes the best use of our assets.

DOCUMENT INFORMATION						
Appendix No	Title					
11.1	App.1 PSM Review of Integration of Social Value FINAL – Original Recommendations and Executive Response					
11.2	App2. PSM Review of Integration of Social Value – Final Report					

Background Papers

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below. If the report is going to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers).

Please contact Scrutiny & Elections Officer where further information is required.

Original Recommendations from Review and Executive's Response

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target Date	Lead Officer	Resources	Service Response	Executive Response	
1.1 102	That the draft Social Value Policy is formally adopted.	Social Value principles are fully integrated within Council Policy and delivery.	Jan 2023	Assistant Director of Development & Planning	Officer time	This is a core aim of the Development service during 2022 and this will also be integrated with the Procurement Strategy creating greater alignment. The ambition would be to secure 10% social value across every tender above the specified limit of £75,000. This threshold would be subject to change should the Council agree to vary its Procurement Rules within	Recommendation approved.	Appendix 1

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target Date	Lead Officer	Resources	Service Response	Executive Response
						the Constitution.	
1.2 103	That as a minimum, all procurements over £75,000 will be required to demonstrate social value outcomes as part of the tender, evaluation and delivery processes.	That the adopted Policy clearly defines which procurements will be required to demonstrate social value outcomes as part of the tender.	Jan 2023	Procurement team/ Social Value Working Group All service areas procuring to tenders over £75,000	Officer time	To keep aligned to the constitution, all tenders over £75,000 should go through the evaluation process and seek to secure a minimum of 10% social value. The onus will be on the service area completing the tender to identify how social value can be achieved, or alternatively evidence why it does not apply. There will be no target setting by	Recommendation approved.

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target Date	Lead Officer	Resources	Service Response	Executive Response
104 LGSC21-22 1.3	That the standard weighting for social value will be a minimum 10% of the overall evaluation score – and where feasible this may be higher.	That the adopted Policy clearly defines the standard weighting for social value within the overall evaluation score	Jan 2023	Procurement team/ Social Value Working Group All service areas procuring to tenders over £75,000	Officer time	Procurement, they will simply prompt service areas to ensure social value outcomes have been accounted for as part of the procurement process. Performance against this criteria in the policy will be monitored by a PI through PERFORM. To keep aligned to the constitution, all tenders over £75,000 should go through the evaluation process and seek to secure a minimum of 10% social value.	Recommendation approved.

PERFORM	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target	Lead Officer	Resources	Service	Executive
Code			Date			Response	Response
						The onus will	
						be on the	
						service area	
						completing	
						the tender to	
						identify how	
						social value	
						can be	
						achieved, or	
						alternatively	
<u> </u>						evidence why	
105						it does not	
						apply.	
						There will be	
						no target	
						setting by	
						Procurement,	
						they will	
						simply prompt	
						service areas	
						to ensure	
						social value	
						outcomes	
						have been	
						accounted for	
						as part of the procurement	
						process.	
LGSC21-22	That Officers in	That maximum	December	Business	Officer time	The CRM	Recommendation
1.4	Development ensure in-	benefit is gained	2022	Growth		system is	approved.
	coming businesses to	from the Horizon		Manager		being	
	Horizon 29 are engaged	29 development in				configured to	

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target Date	Lead Officer	Resources	Service Response	Executive Response
106	with the Council's Business CRM system and appropriate advice and support be given.	terms of local employment and creation of high- skill jobs, through signposting to training advice and funding support.				best capture the data for inward investment enquiries, business support, and business engagement / key account management to best support the growth and location of businesses in the district.	
LGSC21-22 1.5	That Officers ensure the procurement process for a SV calculator tool takes in to account the criteria identified by Members during the review process.	Procurement process meets Members requirements in relation to mitigating potential risks associated with software procurement	May 2022	Executive and Partnerships Team Development Team	Officer time	This was completed during the course of the review with the criteria agreed by Members forming part of the RFQ for the procurement of the evaluation tool.	Recommendation approved.
LGSC21-22 1.6	That the Council completes the required procurement process for an improved social value evaluation tool which will	Procurement of enhanced social value calculator tool to enable Council to embed	May 2022	Executive and Partnerships Team	Officer time	Procurement process complete in May 2022. Initial training	Recommendation approved.

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Desired Outcome	Target Date	Lead Officer	Resources	Service Response	Executive Response
	support improved	social value		Development		and roll-out of	
	analysis and reporting	analysis across all		Team		software to	
	functions, and enable	services areas.				commence in	
	wider use across					July 2022.	
	multiple service areas						
	and by external partners.						

Title of Review:	Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery						
Timescale of Review:	October 2021 – July 2022		Post-Monitor	Post-Monitoring Period:		12 months commencing Octobe 2022. Interim report due March 2023.	
Date agreed by Scrutiny:	Sept 2022		Date agreed by Executive:		October 2022		
Total No. of	Achieved	3	On track	0	Extended	0	
Recommendations and Sub Recommendations	Achieved (Behind target)	0	Overdue	3	Alert	0	

Key Achievements:

- The SV calculator tool was procured as planned, with Member input, and is being trialled among a small number of officers across departments. Initial training took place in the summer of 2022 and further training is planned for March 2023.
- Executive approved the minimum levels for contract values and weighting as part of the completion of the scrutiny review and approval of the recommendations.

Reasons for non-implementation of Recommendations:

• The Development Team is currently working with the LGA to prepare a Social Value Statement and action plan with a view to submitting reports to Executive in April for approval.

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Lead Officer	Target Date	Completion Date	Status	Resources	Progress/Action
LGSC21-22 1.1 109	That the draft Social Value Policy is formally adopted.	Assistant Director of Development & Planning	Jan 2023	March 2024		Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE The Development Team is currently working with the LGA to prepare a Social Value Statement and action plan with a view to submitting reports to Executive in April for approval. The action plan outlines a 12 month programme to embed social value throughout the Council. <u>FINAL UPDATE</u> Action to be transferred to partnerships team.
LGSC21-22 1.2	That as a minimum, all procurements over £75,000 will be required to demonstrate social value outcomes as part of the tender, evaluation and delivery processes.	Procurement team/ Social Value Working Group All service areas procuring to tenders over £75,000	Jan 2023	March 2024		Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE The Development Team is currently working with the LGA to prepare a Social Value Statement and action plan with a view to submitting

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Lead Officer	Target Date	Completion Date	Status	Resources	Progress/Action
							reports to Executive in April for approval.
							The action plan outlines a 12 month programme to embed social value throughout the Council.
110							FINAL UPDATE
0							Concept of the minimum amount approved by Executive on completion of the scrutiny review.
							This needs to be set out in a Social Value Policy as recommended in recommendation 1. This is an action that has been transformed to the
							transferred to the Partnership Team.
LGSC21-22 1.3	That the standard weighting for social value will be a minimum 10% of the overall evaluation score – and where	Procurement team/ Social Value Working Group	Jan 2023	March 2024		Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE The Development Team is currently working with the LGA to prepare a

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Lead Officer	Target Date	Completion Date	Status	Resources	Progress/Action
111	feasible this may be higher.	All service areas procuring to tenders over £75,000					Social Value Statement and action plan with a view to submitting reports to Executive in April for approval. The action plan outlines a 12 month programme to embed social value throughout the Council.
							FINAL UPDATE Concept of the minimum amount approved by Executive on completion of the scrutiny review. This needs to be set out in a Social Value Policy as recommended in recommendation 1. This is an action that has been transferred to the Partnership Team.

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Lead Officer	Target Date	Completion Date	Status	Resources	Progress/Action
LGSC21-22 1.4	That Officers in Development ensure in- coming businesses to Horizon 29 are engaged with the Council's Business CRM system and appropriate advice and support be given.	Business Growth Manager	December 2022			Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE This work is ongoing as the site is developed further and new businesses secure premises.
112							FINAL UPDATE
							Contact made with first tenant, other units will be occupied later this year or next.
LGSC21-22 1.5	That Officers ensure the procurement process for a SV calculator tool takes in to account the criteria identified by Members during the review process.	Executive and Partnerships Team Development Team	May 2022	May 2022		Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE This was completed during the course of the review with the criteria agreed by Members forming part of the RFQ for the procurement of the evaluation tool.
LGSC21-22 1.6	That the Council completes the required procurement process for an improved social value evaluation tool which will support improved analysis	Executive and Partnerships Team Development Team	May 2022	May 2022		Officer time	INTERIM UPDATE Procurement process complete in May 2022. Initial training and roll-out

PERFORM Code	Recommendation	Lead Officer	Target Date	Completion Date	Status	Resources	Progress/Action
	and reporting functions, and enable wider use across multiple service areas and by external partners.						of software commenced in July 2022. Refresher training is planned for March 2023 following an upgrade to the software.



Bolsover District Council

Meeting of Local Growth Scrutiny Committee on 11th December 2023

Local Growth Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2023/24

Report of the Scrutiny Officer

Classification	This report is Public.
Contact Officer	Scrutiny Officer

PURPOSE/SUMMARY OF REPORT

• To provide members of the Scrutiny Committee with an overview of the proposed meeting programme of the Committee for 2023/24.

REPORT DETAILS

1. Background

- 1.1 The main purpose of the report is to inform members of the proposed meeting programme for the year 2023/24 and planned agenda items (Appendix 1).
- 1.2 This programme may be subject to change should additional reports/presentations be required, or if items need to be re-arranged for alternative dates.
- 1.3 Review Scopes submitted will be agreed within Informal Session in advance of the designated meeting for Member approval to ensure that there is sufficient time to gather the information required by Members and to enable forward planning of questions.
- 1.4 Members may raise queries about the programme at the meeting or at any time with the Scrutiny Officer should they have any queries regarding future meetings.

- 1.5 All Scrutiny Committees are committed to equality and diversity in undertaking their statutory responsibilities and ensure equalities are considered as part of all Reviews. The selection criteria when submitting a topic, specifically asks members to identify where the topic suggested affects particular population groups or geographies.
- 1.6 The Council has a statutory duty under s.149 Equality Act 2010 to have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity and to eliminate discrimination.
- 1.7 As part of the scoping of Reviews, consideration is given to any consultation that could support the evidence gathering process.

2. Details of Proposal or Information

2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the meeting schedule for 2023/24 and the proposed agenda items for approval/amendment.

3. <u>Reasons for Recommendation</u>

- 3.1 This report sets the formal Committee Work Programme for 2023/24 and the issues identified for review.
- 3.2 The Scrutiny Programme enables challenge to service delivery both internally and externally across all the Council Ambitions.
- 3.3 The Scrutiny functions outlined in Part 3.6(1) of the Council's Constitution requires each Scrutiny Committee to set an annual work plan.

4 <u>Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection</u>

4.1 There is no option to reject the report as the Scrutiny functions outlined in Part 3.6(1) of the Council's Constitution requires each Scrutiny Committee to set an annual work plan.

RECOMMENDATION(S)

1. That Members review this report and the Programme attached at Appendix 1 for approval and amendment as required. All Members are advised to contact the Scrutiny Officer should they have any queries regarding future meetings.

IMPLICATIONS;				
Finance and Risk: Yes□ Details: None from this report.	No ⊠ On behalf of the Section 151 Office	er		
Legal (including Data Protection):	Yes⊠ No □			
Details:				
In carrying out scrutiny reviews the Co out in Part 1A, s9F(2) of the Local Go	Council is exercising its scrutiny powers as laid overnment Act 2000.			
	On behalf of the Solicitor to the Counc	cil		
Environment: Please identify (if applicable) how this proposal/report will help the Authority meet its carbon neutral target or enhance the environment. Details: None from this report.				
Staffing:Yes□No ⊠Details:None from this report.				
	On behalf of the Head of Paid Servic	e		

DECISION INFORMATION

 Is the decision a Key Decision? A Key Decision is an executive decision which has a significant impact on two or more District wards or which results in income or expenditure to the Council above the following thresholds: Revenue - £75,000 □ Capital - £150,000 □ ☑ Please indicate which threshold applies 	No
Is the decision subject to Call-In? (Only Key Decisions are subject to Call-In) District Wards Significantly Affected	No N/A
Consultation: Leader / Deputy Leader □ Executive □ SLT □ Relevant Service Manager ⊠ Members ⊠ Public □ Other □	Yes Details: Committee Members

Links to Council Ambition: Customers, Economy and Environment.

All

DOCUMENT INFORMATION				
Appendix No	Title			
1.	LGSC Work Programme 2023/24			

Background Papers

(These are unpublished works which have been relied on to a material extent when preparing the report. They must be listed in the section below. If the report is going to Executive you must provide copies of the background papers).

Previous versions of the Committee Work Programme.

Work Programme 2023/24

Formal Items – Report Key

Performance Review	Policy Development	Policy/Strategy/ Programme Monitoring	Review Work	Call-In/Review of Executive Decisions	Petition

Date of Meeting		Items for Agenda	Lead Officer
27 June 2023	Part A – Formal	Agreement of Work Programme 2023/24	Scrutiny & Elections Officer
118		Business Growth Strategy – Monitoring Update	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL
		Update on Levelling Up Fund Bid for Bolsover	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL
	Part B – Informal	Review work	Scrutiny & Elections Officer
1 August 2023	Part A – Formal	Draft Tourism Strategy 2023-2025 – Consultation	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Tourism and Place Manager, DDL
		 Business Engagement Strategy (BES) and Action Plan – Final draft Consultation 	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer
		 UK Shared Prosperity Fund – Monitoring Update 	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Investment & Growth), DDL
		Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	Director of Property & Construction, DDL

Date of Meeting		Items for Agenda	Lead Officer
		Review of Town Centre Regeneration Frameworks – Additional Briefing (VERBAL REPORT)	Chief Executive; Chief Executive – Dragonfly; Portfolio Holder for Growth
	Part B – Informal	Work Programme 2023/24 Review work	Scrutiny & Elections Officer Scrutiny & Elections Officer
5 September 2023 CANCELLED	Part A – Formal	Review of Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Service Level Agreements	Monitoring Officer
3 October 2023	Part A – Formal	Pleasley Vale Regeneration Programme	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Pleasley Vale), DDL
0		Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	Director of Property & Construction, DDL
		Work Programme 2023/24	Scrutiny Officer
	Part B – Informal	CANCELLED	Scrutiny Officer/ Monitoring Officer
11 December 2023	Part A – Formal	New Council Ambition 2024-2028 - Scrutiny Consultation	Information, Engagement and Performance Manager
		 Business Growth Strategy – Monitoring Update – DEFERRED TO NEXT MEETING 	Director of Economic Development, DDL: Business Growth Manager, DDL
		 UK Shared Prosperity Fund – Monitoring Update - DEFERRED TO NEXT MEETING 	 Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Investment & Growth), DDL
		Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	Director of Property & Construction, DDL
		Review of Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Service Level Agreements	Monitoring Officer
		Review of Town Centre Regeneration Frameworks – Summary of Evidence and final recommendations	Chief Executive,

Date of Meeting	Items for Agenda		Lead Officer
			Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL
		 Review of Integration of Social Value to BDC Policy and Delivery – Post-Scrutiny Monitoring (FINAL REPORT) 	Scrutiny Officer
		Work Programme 2023/24	Scrutiny Officer
	Part B – Informal	 Review work: Review of Town Centre Regeneration Frameworks – Agreement of Final Recommendations 	Scrutiny Officer/ Monitoring Officer
12 February 2024 12 0	Part A – Formal	 Tourism Strategy – Monitoring Update 	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Tourism and Place Manager, DDL
		Business Engagement Strategy – Monitoring Update	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Business Engagement), DDL
		Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	Director of Property & Construction, DDL
		Work Programme 2023/24	Scrutiny Officer
	Part B – Informal	Review work	Scrutiny Officer
29 April 2024	Part A – Formal	Pleasley Vale Regeneration Programme	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Pleasley Vale), DDL
		 UK Shared Prosperity Fund – Monitoring Update 	Director of Economic Development, DDL; Business Growth Manager, DDL; Senior Economic Development Officer (Investment & Growth), DDL
		Dragonfly Development Limited (DDL) Delivery Update	Director of Property & Construction, DDL

Date of Meeting	Items for Agenda		Lead Officer
		Work Programme 2023/24	Scrutiny Officer
	Part B –	Review work	Scrutiny Officer
	Informal		